
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA	
REGULAR	MEETING	

7:30	P.M.	–	January	11,	2022	
113	Timber	Trail,	Island	Lake,	IL		

	
Due	to	the	Governor’s	statewide	disaster	declaration	relating	to	the	COVID-19	pandemic	and	current	public	health	guidelines	for	social	distancing,	the	
President	of	the	Northern	Moraine	Wastewater	Reclamation	District	has	determined	that	it	is	not	prudent	for	the	members	of	the	District	Board	or	staff	
to	convene	in-person	for	this	meeting.	Therefore,	the	District	Board	is	meeting	by	video	conference.	Those	same	conditions	require	barring	access	to	the	
public	for	in-person	attendance.		In	light	of	those	limitations,	the	public	is	invited	to	attend	and	listen	to	the	meeting	through	Zoom	platform	or	by	phone	

as	indicated	on	this	meeting	agenda.	To	comply	with	the	Open	Meetings	Act	requirements	for	virtual	meetings,	the	meeting	will	be	recorded.	
	

Zoom	Meeting	w/	Video:	https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7578151340	
Meeting	ID:	757	815	1340	

Zoom	Meeting	w/	Audio	Only:	+13126266799,,7578151340#	
	

1. CALL	TO	ORDER	&	ROLL	CALL	
	
2. PLEDGE	OF	ALLEGIANCE	
	
3. PRESENTATION	&	APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES		

a. Regular	Meeting	Minutes	–	December	14,	2021	
b. Executive	Session	Minutes	–	December	14,	2021	
	

4. TREASURER’S	REPORT	
a. Quarterly	Investment	Report	

	
5. PUBLIC	COMMENTS	

	
6. MANAGER’S	REPORT	

a. Operations	Report	
b. Engineering	Report	
c. Delinquent	Accounts	Report	
	

7. TRUSTEE	REPORTS	
	
8. LEGAL	BUSINESS	
	
9. OLD	BUSINESS	

 
10. NEW	BUSINESS	

a. Approval	of	Ordinance	22-01	to	Abate	GO	Bond	Taxes	for	2021	
b. Approval	of	Resolution	22-01	Authorizing	the	Request	for	CDBG	Funding	in	the	Amount	of	

$200,000	for	Holiday	Hills	
c. Approval	of	Resolution	22-02	Ratifying	the	Approval	and	Acceptance	of	an	IEPA	Unsewered	

Community	Grant	in	the	amount	of	$3,495,600	for	the	Holiday	Hills	Phase	1	Project	
d. Approval	of	Engineering	Contract	Addendum	#	3	with	Trotter	and	Associates	for	the	Holiday	

Hills	Sanitary	Sewer	Project		
e. Approval	of	Resolution	22-03	Establishing	updated	COVID-19	Safety	Precautions	
f. NIMEC	Electrical	Agreement	

	
	
	



 
 

 
 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
11. MISCELLANEOUS	CORRESPONDENCE	

a. Holiday	Hills	/	Le	Villa	Vaupell	Resident	Update	Letter	
b. Press	Release	for	Holiday	Hills	/	Le	Villa	Vaupell	$3,495,600	Unsewered	Community	Grant	

	
12. APPROVAL	OF	BILLS	
	
13. OTHER	BUSINESS	

a. Executive	Session	–	Personnel,	if	needed				 	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Posted	to	www.nmwrd.org	–	January	7,	2022	



             
 

1 

NORTHERN	MORAINE	WASTEWATER	RECLAMATION	DISTRICT	
113	Timber	Trail,	Island	Lake,	Illinois	60042	

	
REGULAR	MEETING	MINUTES	

December	14,	2021	
	

Zoom	Meeting	w/	Video:	https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7578151340	
	

Present:				Trustees:		John	Ragland,	Jacob	Mann,	Timothy	Brunn,	Lydia	Ryberg,	Ken	Michaels		
																				District	Manager:		Mohammed	Haque;	District	Clerk:	Deborah	Martin	
	
	Others:				District	Superintendent:	Luke	Markko	
	
President	Michaels	called	the	meeting	to	order	at	7:30	p.m.			President	Michaels	stated:		
	
“Due	to	the	Governor’s	statewide	disaster	declaration	relating	to	the	COVID-19	pandemic	and	current	public	health	guidelines	
for	social	distancing,	I	have	determined	that	it	is	not	prudent	for	the	members	of	the	District	Board	or	staff	to	convene	in-person	
for	this	meeting.	Therefore,	the	District	Board	is	meeting	by	video	conference.	Those	same	conditions	require	barring	access	to	
the	public	for	in-person	attendance.		In	light	of	those	limitations,	the	public	is	invited	to	attend	and	listen	to	the	meeting	through	
Zoom	platform	or	by	phone	as	indicated	on	this	meeting	agenda.	To	comply	with	the	Open	Meetings	Act	requirements	for	virtual	
meetings,	this	meeting	will	be	recorded.”	
	
1.				CALL	TO	ORDER:	

Roll	Call:															Timothy	Brunn	–	Present,	via	Zoom	
	 	 	 Jacob	Mann	–	Present,	via	Zoom	

John	Ragland	–	Present,	via	Zoom	
	 	 	 Lydia	Ryberg	–	Present,	via	Zoom	
	 	 	 Ken	Michaels	–	Present,	via	Zoom	
	
2.				PLEDGE	OF	ALLEGIANCE:	
The	Pledge	of	Allegiance	was	recited.	
	
3.				PRESENTATION	&	APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES:	

a.	Regular	Meeting,	November	9,	2021	
Motion	by	Trustee	Brunn	to	approve	the	Regular	Meeting	minutes	of	November	9,	2021	as	presented.	
2nd	by	Trustee	Mann	

Roll	Call	Vote:		 Timothy	Brunn	–	Aye	
	 	 Jacob	Mann	-	Aye	

	 	 	 John	Ragland	-	Aye	
	 	 	 Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
	 	 	 Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
5	ayes			0	nays				0	abstain																															MOTION	CARRIED	
	

b.		Semi-Annual	Executive	Session	Minutes	Review	
After	discussion	of	the	sets	of	Executive	Session	minutes,	the	Board	felt	the	need	to	retain	the	Executive	Minutes	
that	pertained	to	the	purchase	of	land.		The	Board	agreed	to	release	the	sets	of	Executive	Minutes	that	pertained	
to	personnel	issues.	
	
Motion	by	Mr.	Brunn	to	retain	the	Executive	Session	Meeting	minutes	of	November	13,	2018,	December	11,	
2018	and	January	8,	2109	and	to	release	the	Executive	Session	Meeting	minutes	of	August	11,	2020,	September	
8,	2020	and	October	13,	2020.	
2nd	by	Trustee	Ryberg	
	
	



 
Northern	Moraine	Wastewater	Reclamation	District	

Regular	Meeting	Minutes	
December	14,	2021	

 

 2 

	
Roll	Call	Vote:		 Timothy	Brunn	–	Aye	
	 	 Jacob	Mann	-	Aye	

	 	 	 John	Ragland	-	Aye	
	 	 	 Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
	 	 	 Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
5	ayes			0	nays				0	abstain																															MOTION	CARRIED	
	
	
			4.				TREASURER'S	REPORT:	

a.		Approval	of	the	Monthly	Treasurer’s	Report	for	month	ending	October	31,	2021			
Treasurer	John	Ragland	presented	the	monthly	treasurer’s	report	to	the	Board.	
Motion	by	Mrs.	Ryberg	to	approve	the	Treasurer’s	Report	for	month	ending	October	31,	2021	as	presented.	
2nd	by	Mr.	Brunn		

Roll	Call	Vote:		 Timothy	Brunn	–	Aye	
	 	 Jacob	Mann	-	Aye	

	 	 	 John	Ragland	-	Aye	
	 	 	 Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
	 	 	 Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
			5	ayes			0	nays				0	absent																								MOTION	CARRIED	
	
	
5.			PUBLIC	COMMENTS:			none	
	 	
6.				MANAGER’S	REPORT:	
District	Manager	Haque	clarified	that	the	Board	should	be	aware	of	a	last-minute	Resolution	included	in	the	
Manager’s	Report	accepting	the	$3,495,600	grant	awarded	by	the	IEPA	from	the	Unsewered	Community	Grant	
Fund.		Mr.	Haque	explained	that	the	documents	for	this	grant	were	received	late	last	week	and	thus	were	not	
included	 in	 the	 trustee’s	 board	 meeting	 packets.	 	 Because	 of	 the	 time	 restraints	 in	 returning	 the	 grant	
documents,	it	is	the	recommendation	of	the	District’s	attorney	that	the	Board	make	a	motion	to	accept	the	grant	
and	to	authorize	the	District	President,	District	Manager	and	District	Clerk	to	take	action	to	secure	the	grant	
funds	and	that	next	month	this	Resolution	would	be	on	the	agenda	and	ratified.	
	

Approval	of	Resolution	21-10,	accepting	the	Grant	from	the	IEPA’s	Unsewered	Community	Grant	Fund				
Motion	by	Mr.	Brunn	 to	 approve	Resolution	21-10,	 accepting	 the	 $3,495,600	 grant	 awarded	by	 the	 IEPA’s	
Unsewered	Community	Grant	Fund	and	to	authorize	the	District	Manager,	the	District	President,	the	District	
Clerk,	and	their	designees	to	take	all	action	necessary	in	furtherance	of	securing	the	grant	funds.	Because	this	
motion	was	not	on	the	agenda,	the	Resolution	will	be	ratified	at	the	next	board	meeting.	
	2nd	by	Mrs.	Ryberg		

Roll	Call	Vote:		 Timothy	Brunn	–	Aye	
	 	 Jacob	Mann	-	Aye	

	 	 	 John	Ragland	-	Aye	
	 	 	 Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
	 	 	 Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
			5	ayes			0	nays				0	absent																								MOTION	CARRIED	
	
District	Manager	Haque	summarized	his	Manager’s	report	 for	the	Board	and	included	Superintendent	Luke	
Markko	 in	a	discussion	concerning	a	OSHA	 inspection	of	 the	wastewater	 treatment	 facility	on	December	3,	
2021.	The	inspector	told	Mr.	Markko	that	the	Illinois	OSHA	department	was	conducting	random	inspections	in	
the	region	of	organizations	that	have	never	had	prior	inspections.	A	tour	was	given	and	the	inspector’s	request	
for	safety	documentation	has	been	provided.		An	inspection	report	of	OSHA’s	findings	should	be	expected	in	
January.		
	



 
Northern	Moraine	Wastewater	Reclamation	District	

Regular	Meeting	Minutes	
December	14,	2021	

 

 3 

7.			TRUSTEE	REPORTS	-	none	
	

8.		LEGAL	BUSINESS	-	none	
	
9.		OLD	BUSINESS		
	 a.		Semi	Annual	Review	of	District’s	Strategic	Plan	
	After	a	brief	discussion	by	the	Board	of	the	weaknesses	section	of	the	District’s	Strategic	Plan	and	the	many	items	
listed	on	the	review	that	the	District	has	completed,	the	Board	made	the	decision	that	because	no	changes	were	
made,	it	was	not	necessary	to	make	a	motion	to	adopt	the	semi-annual	Strategic	Plan.	 	
																																													 	
10.		NEW	BUSINESS	
									 			a.		Approval	of	NMWRD’s	2022	Board	Meeting	Dates	
Motion	by	Mr.	Brunn	to	approve	the	2022	NMWRD	regular	Board	Meeting	dates	as	presented.	
2nd	by	Mrs.	Ryberg	
																								Roll	Call	Vote:															Timothy	Brunn	-	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Jacob	Mann	–	Aye	
																																																																		John	Ragland	–	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
																																																																			Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
	5	ayes			0	nays				0	absent															MOTION	CARRIED	
	

b.		Approval	of	NMWRD’s	2022	Holiday	Schedule	
There	was	some	discussion	about	the	need	to	grant	Juneteenth	as	a	District	holiday.		Manager	Haque	explained	
the	significance	of	 the	 federal	holiday.	 	 It	was	determined	 that	 it	was	not	mandated	as	a	 local	government	
holiday.		Motion	by	Mr.	Ragland	to	accept	the	2022	NMWRD	Holiday	Schedule	as	presented.	
2nd	by	Mr.	Brunn	
																								Roll	Call	Vote:															Timothy	Brunn	-	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Jacob	Mann	–	Aye	
																																																																		John	Ragland	–	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
																																																																			Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
	5	ayes			0	nays				0		absent																		MOTION	CARRIED	
	
	

c.		Approval	of	Resolution	for	Change	Order	#1	for	Chicagoland	Paving	and	Update	on	WWTP	Access	
Improvements	Project	
Manager	Haque	informed	the	Board	that	there	had	been	issues	with	the	work	completed	so	far	by	Chicagoland	
Paving;	the	curb	had	been	poured	six	inches	too	high.	This	issue	is	being	examined	by	our	District	attorney	and	
it	is	anticipated	that	legal	action	may	be	needed.		In	the	interim	a	change	order	is	provided	for	previously	agreed	
upon	sub-grading	work.	
			
Motion	by	Mr.	Brunn	to	approve	Change	Order	#1	for	Chicagoland	Paving	in	the	amount	of	$5,850.		
2nd	by	Mrs.	Ryberg	
																								Roll	Call	Vote:															Timothy	Brunn	-	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Jacob	Mann	–	Aye	
																																																																		John	Ragland	–	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
																																																																			Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
	
	5	ayes			0	nays				0	absent																		MOTION	CARRIED	
	
	
	



 
Northern	Moraine	Wastewater	Reclamation	District	

Regular	Meeting	Minutes	
December	14,	2021	

 

 4 

	
	
	
Motion	by	Mr.	Brunn	to	approve	a	Resolution	authorizing	the	District	Manager	to	seek	all	remedies	 for	the	
outcome	of	contract	issues	with	Chicagoland	Paving.	
2nd	by	Mrs.	Ryberg	
	
																								Roll	Call	Vote:															Timothy	Brunn	-	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Jacob	Mann	–	Aye	
																																																																		John	Ragland	–	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
																																																																			Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
	
	5	ayes			0	nays				0	absent																		MOTION	CARRIED	
																																																							
11.		MISCELLANEOUS	CORRESPONDENCE	
			 a.		Village	of	Island	Lake	Water	Rate	Increase	Letter		
District	Manager	Haque	referred	the	Board	to	a	letter	received	concerning	the	Village	of	Island	Lake’s	proposed	
50%	water	rate	increase.	

b.		Northwest	Herald	article	of	November	10,	2021	concerning	the	District’s	views	on	wipes	
The	Board	expressed	appreciation	 in	having	 the	District’s	 stance	on	 the	adverse	effect	of	 flushed	wipes	on	
public	sewer	systems	being	reported	in	the	Northwest	Herald.	
	 c.		MCCG	Holiday	Dinner	
District	Manager	Haque	reminded	the	Board	that	the	McHenry	Council	of	Government’s	Holiday	Dinner	will	be	
held	at	the	Holiday	Inn	in	Crystal	Lake	on	Wednesday,	December	15,	2021		
	
12.		APPROVAL	OF	BILLS	
Motion	by	Mrs.	Ryberg	to	approve	payment	of	bills	 for	 the	December	14,	2021	bill	 list	as	presented,	 in	 the	
amount	of	$228,498.08.	
2nd	by	Mr.	Brunn	

Roll	Call	Vote:										 Timothy	Brunn	-	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Jacob	Mann	–	Aye	
																																																																		John	Ragland	–	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
																																																																			Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
			5	ayes			0	nays				0	absent																		MOTION	CARRIED	
	
			
13.		OTHER	BUSINESS	–	Executive	Session	
	 a.		Personnel																																			 																			
At	this	time,	President	Michaels	asked	Superintendent	Luke	Markko	to	sign	off	for	the	Regular	board	meeting.		
President	Michaels	also	asked	that	District	Manager	Mohammed	Haque	leave	for	the	Executive	Session	and	
stated	that	District	Clerk	Debi	Martin	should	stay	and	that	she	should	text	Manager	Haque	when	the	Executive	
Session	was	over.				
	
	Motion	by	President	Michaels	to	go	into	Executive	Session	to	discuss	personnel	issues.	
2nd	by	Mr.	Brunn	
5	ayes			0	nays				0	absent																		MOTION	CARRIED	
	
	
Regular	Session	ended	at	8:04	pm	
Executive	Session	ended	at	8:24	pm	
Regular	Session	reconvened	at	8:25	pm	



 
Northern	Moraine	Wastewater	Reclamation	District	

Regular	Meeting	Minutes	
December	14,	2021	

 

 5 

	
	
	
President	 Michaels	 stated	 that	 no	 Board	 action	 was	 taken	 in	 the	 Executive	 Session	 concerning	 personnel	
matters.	
	
Motion	 by	 President	 Michaels	 to	 empower	 the	 District	 Manager	 to	 award	 to	 District	 staff	 end	 of	 year	
performance	 bonuses	 in	 the	 amounts	 indicated	 per	 staff	 member	 based	 on	 the	 District	 Manager’s	
determination	 of	 that	 staff	 member’s	 performance	 over	 the	 past	 year	 and	 to	 approve	 an	 end	 of	 year	
performance	bonus	for	Manager	Haque	in	the	amount	as	noted.	
2nd	by	Mrs.	Ryberg.	

Roll	Call	Vote:										 Timothy	Brunn	-	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Jacob	Mann	–	Aye	
																																																																		John	Ragland	–	Aye	
	 	 	 																	Lydia	Ryberg	–	Aye	
																																																																			Ken	Michaels	–	Aye	
			5	ayes			0	nays				0	absent																		MOTION	CARRIED	
	
	 	 	 	 	

ADJOURNMENT		
Motion	by	Mrs.	Ryberg	to	adjourn	the	meeting	at	8:27	p.m.	
2nd	by	Mr.	Brunn	

	
		 5	ayes			0	nays				0	absent							MOTION	CARRIED	



 9:38 AM
 01/06/22
 Accrual Basis

 Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District

 Treasurer Report
 As of November 30, 2021

Nov 30, 21

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1015 ꞏ Cash on Hand 500.00

1016 ꞏ Chase - Checking 1,457,303.32

1018 ꞏ Chase - Savings 414,902.61

1020 ꞏ Blackhawk Checking 803,647.71

1030 ꞏ Blackhawk Savings 9.01

1060 ꞏ IL Epay Funds 92,331.61

Total Checking/Savings 2,768,694.26

Kenneth A. Michaels, Jr, President Date

John Ragland, Treasurer Date

Deborah Martin, District Clerk Date

   This report has been reviewed by Roberta C. Wajrowski, CPA

 Page 1 of 1



May - Nov 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

2640 ꞏ Bond Proceeds 0.00 5,000,000.00 (5,000,000.00) 0.0%
4010 ꞏ Property Tax Income 97,863.34 106,750.00 (8,886.66) 91.7%
4090 ꞏ Replacement Tax Income 1,728.14 840.00 888.14 205.7%
4300 ꞏ Sewer Permit Income 1,200.00 1,400.00 (200.00) 85.7%
4500 ꞏ Sewer Usage Income 1,613,041.99 2,750,870.00 (1,137,828.01) 58.6%
4510 ꞏ Connection Fees 527,690.38 143,920.00 383,770.38 366.7%
4520 ꞏ Penalty Income 45,258.24 59,010.00 (13,751.76) 76.7%
4600 ꞏ Refund Income 5,815.00 100.00 5,715.00 5,815.0%
4730 ꞏ Interest Income 211.21 3,500.00 (3,288.79) 6.0%
4900 ꞏ Miscellaneous Income 753.94 2,000.00 (1,246.06) 37.7%
4910 ꞏ Hauled Waste Income 40,458.30 44,530.00 (4,071.70) 90.9%
4930 ꞏ Engin. & Legal Rev. Fees 13,932.00 5,000.00 8,932.00 278.6%

Total Income 2,347,952.54 8,117,920.00 (5,769,967.46) 28.9%

Gross Profit 2,347,952.54 8,117,920.00 (5,769,967.46) 28.9%

Expense
5000 ꞏ Salaries 402,558.69 791,970.00 (389,411.31) 50.8%
5010 ꞏ Payroll Tax Expense 29,746.64 59,400.00 (29,653.36) 50.1%
5020 ꞏ Payroll Expenses-other 600.00 900.00 (300.00) 66.7%
5030 ꞏ Employee Insurance 69,685.75 180,800.00 (111,114.25) 38.5%
5040 ꞏ Trainings & Seminars 4,854.74 10,600.00 (5,745.26) 45.8%
5050 ꞏ Clothing Allowance 582.14 3,000.00 (2,417.86) 19.4%
5060 ꞏ IMRF Employer Contribution Exp. 34,842.28 70,590.00 (35,747.72) 49.4%
5110 ꞏ Maintenance-Buildings 24,068.04 18,000.00 6,068.04 133.7%
5120 ꞏ Maintenance-Vehicles 6,230.33 11,000.00 (4,769.67) 56.6%
5130 ꞏ Maintenance-Equipment 12,596.11 21,500.00 (8,903.89) 58.6%
5140 ꞏ Maintenance-Utility System 24,467.95 85,000.00 (60,532.05) 28.8%
5150 ꞏ Maintenance Supplies 1,342.64 3,000.00 (1,657.36) 44.8%
5160 ꞏ Sludge Hauling 20,620.32 27,000.00 (6,379.68) 76.4%
5210 ꞏ Operating Supplies 3,632.44 8,000.00 (4,367.56) 45.4%
5220 ꞏ Motor Fuel & Lube 7,184.27 15,000.00 (7,815.73) 47.9%
5230 ꞏ Vehicle Supplies 334.83 600.00 (265.17) 55.8%
5240 ꞏ Lab Supplies 6,986.18 15,000.00 (8,013.82) 46.6%
5245 ꞏ Miscellaneous Equipment 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%
5250 ꞏ Small Tools 110.91 1,200.00 (1,089.09) 9.2%
5255 ꞏ Chemicals Expense 66,172.03 80,000.00 (13,827.97) 82.7%

5260 ꞏ Safety Equipment 9,080.89 10,500.00 (1,419.11) 86.5%
5320 ꞏ General Insurance 46,460.00 78,060.00 (31,600.00) 59.5%
5330 ꞏ Telephone Expense 21,818.33 37,390.00 (15,571.67) 58.4%
5360 ꞏ Utilities 86,978.31 153,000.00 (66,021.69) 56.8%
5361 ꞏ Security System 10,210.77 11,500.00 (1,289.23) 88.8%
5380 ꞏ Rentals 814.00 1,100.00 (286.00) 74.0%
5390 ꞏ Travel Expense 2,244.72 1,500.00 744.72 149.6%
5410 ꞏ Software Support 20,258.60 49,470.00 (29,211.40) 41.0%

5420 ꞏ Accounting Service 8,900.00 8,600.00 300.00 103.5%
5430 ꞏ Professional Lab Testing 7,044.63 7,000.00 44.63 100.6%
5435 ꞏ Julie Locate Expense 380.98 3,500.00 (3,119.02) 10.9%
5440 ꞏ Engineering Service 6,655.75 2,000.00 4,655.75 332.8%

5450 ꞏ Legal Expenses 54,937.00 41,500.00 13,437.00 132.4%

5460 ꞏ Permit Fees 18,000.00 18,000.00 0.00 100.0%
5480 ꞏ Other Professional Services 67,304.45 125,440.00 (58,135.55) 53.7%
5510 ꞏ Office Supplies 5,493.66 8,000.00 (2,506.34) 68.7%
5520 ꞏ Postage 16,120.99 25,000.00 (8,879.01) 64.5%
5530 ꞏ Website Expense 154.00 2,000.00 (1,846.00) 7.7%
5540 ꞏ Printing & Publishing 5,564.49 10,300.00 (4,735.51) 54.0%
5550 ꞏ Publications & Subscriptions 7.15 200.00 (192.85) 3.6%
5560 ꞏ Membership Dues 2,863.00 4,860.00 (1,997.00) 58.9%
5630 ꞏ Bank Service Charges 7,170.12 13,800.00 (6,629.88) 52.0%
5640 ꞏ Interest Expense 33,637.49 82,921.00 (49,283.51) 40.6%
5710 ꞏ Miscellaneous Expense 30.69 500.00 (469.31) 6.1%
5810 ꞏ Refunds 0.00 100.00 (100.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 1,148,746.31 2,100,801.00 (952,054.69) 54.7%

Net Ordinary Income 1,199,206.23 6,017,119.00 (4,817,912.77) 19.9%

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

4810 ꞏ Bond Proceeds & Interest 0.00 12,213,072.00 (12,213,072.00) 0.0%
4995 ꞏ Grants & Contributions 2,196.00 600,000.00 (597,804.00) 0.4%

Total Other Income 2,196.00 12,813,072.00 (12,810,876.00) 0.0%

Other Expense
6010 ꞏ Office Equipment over $500 366.98 2,500.00 (2,133.02) 14.7%

6030 ꞏ Capitalized Treatment Upgrade 685,689.06 13,413,296.00 (12,727,606.94) 5.1%

6040 ꞏ Bond Principal Payable 0.00 393,818.00 (393,818.00) 0.0%
6070 ꞏ Building Improvements 0.00 9,000.00 (9,000.00) 0.0%

Total Other Expense 686,056.04 13,818,614.00 (13,132,557.96) 5.0%

Net Other Income (683,860.04) (1,005,542.00) 321,681.96 68.0%

Net Income 515,346.19 5,011,577.00 (4,496,230.81) 10.3%

9:34 AM Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Accrual Basis May 1, 2021 through November 30, 2021

Page 1



NMWRD Escrow Account(s) Summary
Rev. December 1st, 2021

Project Village Developer Escrow Start Total Funding Draws Balance as of Dec. 1st Notes
Buona Beef LM Keystone Construct LLC 12/18/2020 4,062.75$         1 1,250.00$                       Account Current

Lakemoor Commons Lot 5 ‐ Building A (Chipotle) LM Keystone Construct LLC 3/18/2021 6,378.47$         12 735.88$                          
Account Current (Nearing project completion. Will seek 

replenishment if we exceed remaining balance.)

Lakemoor Commons Lot 5 ‐ Building B (Future Multi‐Tenant) LM Keystone Construct LLC 3/18/2021 6,421.72$         12 735.88$                          
Account Current (Nearing project completion. Will seek 

replenishment if we exceed remaining balance.)

Lakemoor Commons Lot 5 ‐ Building C (Future Tenant) LM Keystone Construct LLC 3/18/2021 6,032.47$         12 735.88$                          
Account Current (Nearing project completion. Will seek 

replenishment if we exceed remaining balance.)

Lakemoor Commons Lot 5 ‐ Building D (Starbucks) LM Keystone Construct LLC 3/18/2021 5,989.22$         12 735.88$                          
Account Current (Nearing project completion. Will seek 

replenishment if we exceed remaining balance.)

Woodman's Car Wash Expansion LM FoxArneson, Inc. 5/20/2021 11,386.50$      10 386.31$                          
Account Current (Nearing project completion. Will seek 

replenishment if we exceed remaining balance.)
Dollar General IL CG Buckhalter LLC 9/27/2021 2,500.00$         2 215.25$                           $1,034.75 replenishment requested on 1/6/2022

Total Funding for All Escrow Accounts to Date
As of November 1st, 2021

42,771.13$  



NMWRD Sewer Connection Permit Tracking

Darrell Road Special Connection Fee Collections
*Special Connection Fees Ordinance approved February 2020

Permit Date Address City

Subdivision/

Business Permit Owner Permit No. Amount Paid

3/4/2020 32045 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5643 3,248.00$       

3/4/2020 32046 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5644 3,248.00$       

3/4/2020 32047 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5645 3,248.00$       

3/25/2020 32049 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5646 3,248.00$       

6/29/2020 32044 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5647 3,248.00$       

6/29/2020 32054 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5648 3,248.00$       

8/27/2020 32052 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5649 3,248.00$       

9/10/2020 32064 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5650 3,248.00$       

9/15/2020 32051 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5651 3,248.00$       

9/18/2020 334 Rosedale Drive LM Rosedales Buckhalter 5652 3,248.00$       

9/18/2020 336 Rosedale Drive LM Rosedales Buckhalter 4450-A 3,248.00$       

9/21/2020 32038 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5653 3,248.00$       

10/27/2020 32048 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5654 3,248.00$       

10/27/2020 32050 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5655 3,248.00$       

2/11/2021 32058 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5656 3,248.00$       

3/4/2021 32057 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5657 3,248.00$       

6/10/2021
31500 US Highway 12

- Buona Beef
LM Lakemoor Commons Lakemoor Ventures 5658 13,920.00$     

6/17/2021 32040 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5659 3,248.00$       

6/30/2021 32056 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5660 3,248.00$       

6/30/2021 32072 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5661 3,248.00$       

6/30/2021 32053 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5662 3,248.00$       

7/28/2021 32055 Ssavannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5663 3,248.00$       

7/30/2021 2317 Fenview Circle IL Prairie Woods Pulte Group 5664 3,248.00$       

8/13/2021
27450 IL Route 120

- Building A (Chipotle)
LM Lakemoor Commons Lakemoor Retail Partners 5665 12,992.00$     

8/13/2021

27450 IL Route 120

- Building B (Future Multi-

Tenant)

LM Lakemoor Commons Lakemoor Retail Partners 5666 13,920.00$     

8/13/2021

27450 IL Route 120

- Building C/D (Future 

Tenant and Starbucks)

LM Lakemoor Commons Lakemoor Retail Partners 5667 13,920.00$     

8/17/2021 28601 Augusta Lane LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5669 3,248.00$       

8/23/2021 32060 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5668 3,248.00$       

9/21/2021
27565 IL Route 120

- Woodman's Car Wash
LM Lakemoor Commons

Woodmans / J Pease 

Construction
5634-A 32,480.00$     

10/27/2021 32062 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5670 3,248.00$       

11/17/2021 28607 Augusta Lane LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5671 3,248.00$       

12/21/2021 2408 Fenview Circle IL Prairie Woods Pulte Group / Veruna LLC 5673 3,248.00$       

12/21/2021 2433 Fenview Circle IL Prairie Woods Pulte Group / Veruna LLC 5674 3,248.00$       

12/21/2021 1935 Foxridge Drive IL Prairie Woods Pulte Group / Veruna LLC 5675 3,248.00$       

12/21/2021 1929 Foxridge Drive IL Prairie Woods Pulte Group / Veruna LLC 5676 3,248.00$       

1/4/2022 32030 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs William Ryan Homes 5677 3,248.00$       

Cumulative Total: 184,672.00$  



 
 

 
 

Northern Moraine WRD Project Grant Tracking 
Rev. January 6, 2022 
 

Project Year Program Agency Grant 
Requested 

Expected 
Grant 

Amount 

Project 
Amount 

Date 
Applied Status 

Darrell Road 
Unsewered 
Facilities 
Project – All 
Phases 

2020 

Rebuild Illinois 
Public 
Infrastructure 
Grant Program 

DCEO $4,995,160 - $18,500,493 6/24/2020 Under Review 

Control 
Building 
Electrical 
Upgrades 
Project 

2020 

Installation and/or 
Replacement of 
Utilities Grant 
Program (Public 
Act 101-0007 
and/or Public Act 
101-0029) 

DCEO $200,000 $200,000 $445,494 6/23/2020 Awarded/ In-
Progress 

Unsewered 
Community – 
Village of 
Holiday Hills 

2020 

Unsewered 
Communities 
Construction Grant 
Program 

IEPA $3,495,600 $3,495,000 $6,700,000 12/31/2020 Awarded/ In 
Progress 

Lakemoor Lift 
Stations 2021 

Capital Grant Line 
Item Appropriation 
(Public Act 101-
0638, House Bill 
0064) 

DCEO $400,000 $400,000 $732,730 3/11/2021 

Waiting on 
Receipt of the 

Grant 
Agreement from 

DCEO 
*Darrell Road 
Unsewered 
Facilities 
Project 

2021 

FY2022 
Appropriations 
Request Form IL-14 
(Google Form) 

US House 
Representative 

Underwood 
$18,350,520 - $18,350,000 3/5/2021 Not Awarded 

Unsewered 
Community – 
Village of 
Holiday Hills 

2021 

FEMA – Building 
Resilient 
Infrastructure and 
Communities 
(BRIC) 

US Dept. of 
Homeland 

Security, FEMA 
TBD - $6,700,000 9/30/2021 

Coordinating w/ 
R1Planning, 

McHenry Co., 
TAI, & Tryon 

Govt. Consulting 

Expected Grant Amount (rev. November 2021)  $4,095,600 
 
*District made the same request to US House Representative Underwood's Office for Holiday Hills full project cost. This 
was done prior to the District being informed that the Unsewered community grant was approved. 



Northern Moraine WRD ‐ Septage Receiving Tracking
FY 2021‐22

Month Loads Gallons Revenue FY21‐22 Revenue FY20‐21
May‐21 20 67,300 $3,814.40 $3,396.60
Jun‐21 18 64,400 $3,610.80 $3,763.80
Jul‐21 20 69,700 $3,937.20 $4,528.80
Aug‐21 36 122,000 $6,839.10 $2,927.40
Sep‐21 37 123,150 $7,032.90 $3,937.20
Oct‐21 47 151,950 $8,858.70 $4,018.80
Nov‐21 34 111,650 $6,369.90 $3,488.40
Dec‐21 23 77,181 $4,345.20 $1,285.20
Jan‐21 ‐ ‐ ‐ $1,632.00
Feb‐21 ‐ ‐ ‐ $734.40
Mar‐21 ‐ ‐ ‐ $5,151.00
Apr‐21 ‐ ‐ ‐ $4,763.40
Total 235 787,331 $44,808.20 $39,627.00

Date Company Name Gallons Cost/Gal Revenue Time Type
5/3/2021 Comm. Sewer 2700 Flat Rate $173.40 10:30 AM Septic
5/5/2021 Comm. Sewer 2300 Flat Rate $173.40 10:00 AM Septic
5/5/2021 Weidner 3750 Flat Rate $204.00 12:10 PM Septic
5/6/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 ‐ Septic
5/7/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:50 AM Septic
5/7/2021 Comm. Sewer 2700 Flat Rate $173.40 10:30 AM Septic
5/7/2021 Helmer 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 12:10 PM Septic
5/7/2021 Comm. Sewer 2700 Flat Rate $173.40 1:30 PM Septic
5/7/2021 Weidner 3750 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
5/10/2021 Weidner 3750 Flat Rate $204.00 1:20 PM Septic
5/11/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 1:15 PM Septic
5/13/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 8:30 AM Septic
5/14/2021 Comm. Sewer 3750 Flat Rate $173.40 10:23 AM Septic
5/18/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 ‐ Septic
5/20/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
5/21/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:00 AM Septic
5/21/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 11:30 AM Septic
5/25/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.00 11:50 AM Septic
5/25/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 10:30 AM Septic
5/27/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 12:00 PM Septic
6/2/2021 Weidner 3800 Flate Rate $204.00 9:45 AM Septic
6/3/2021 Weidner 3500 Flate Rate $204.00 9:00 AM Septic
6/3/2021 Comm. Sewer 2800 Flate Rate $173.40 12:00 PM Septic
6/3/2021 Weidner 3800 Flate Rate $204.00 1:00 PM Septic
6/4/2021 Comm. Sewer 3200 Flat Rate $173.40 8:15 AM Septic
6/4/2021 Weidner 3750 Flat Rate $204.00 12:50 PM Septic
6/8/2021 Weidner 3300 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
6/8/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 2:15 PM Septic
6/10/2021 Weidner 3750 Flat Rate $204.00 9:00 AM Septic
6/11/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 8:30 AM Septic
6/16/2021 Weidner 3400 Flate Rate $204.00 9:20 AM Septic
6/18/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:20 AM Septic
6/18/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 12:05 PM Septic
6/22/2021 Weidner 3700 Flate Rate $204.00 1:20 PM Septic
6/23/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
6/24/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:50 AM Septic
6/29/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 2:00 PM Septic
6/30/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 12:00 PM Septic

M
ay

Ju
ne



7/1/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 8:35 AM Septic
7/1/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 11:20 AM Septic
7/7/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 2:15 PM Septic
7/8/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 8:40 AM Septic
7/8/2021 Helmer 2700 Flat Rate $183.60 9:20 AM Septic
7/8/2021 Helmer 2800 Flat Rate $183.60 2:20 PM Septic
7/8/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 3:00 PM Septic
7/9/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 12:30 PM Septic
7/9/2021 Weidner 3000 Flat Rate $183.60 1:30 PM Septic
7/12/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:00 AM Septic
7/13/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:20 AM Septic
7/15/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 12:40 PM Septic
7/16/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
7/19/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 10:00 AM Septic
7/20/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 12:00 PM Septic
7/23/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 10:30 AM Septic
7/28/2021 Helmer 3000 Flat Rate $183.60 10:50 AM Septic
7/28/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:05 AM Septic
7/29/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 ‐ Septic
7/30/2020 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 ‐ Septic
8/2/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 12:20 PM Septic
8/3/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
8/3/2021 Helmer 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 7:10 AM Septic
8/3/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 10:30 AM Septic
8/4/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 12:15 PM Septic
8/5/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 12:00 PM Septic
8/5/2021 Comm. Sewer 3400 Flat Rate $173.40 2:45 PM Septic
8/6/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:50 AM Septic
8/6/2021 Helmer 3200 Flat Rate $183.60 10:30 AM Septic
8/9/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
8/10/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 8:40 AM Septic
8/10/2021 Comm. Sewer 3400 Flat Rate $173.40 2:30 PM Septic
8/11/2021 Weidner 3000 Flat Rate $204.00 9:00 AM Septic
8/13/2021 Weidner 3400 Flat Rate $204.00 9:00 AM Septic
8/13/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 1:30 PM Septic
8/17/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 12:10 PM Septic
8/17/2021 Helmer 3200 Flat Rate $183.60 8:00 AM Septic
8/18/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 12:30 PM Septic
8/19/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 1:30 PM Septic
8/19/2021 Helmer 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 10:30 AM Septic
8/19/2021 Comm. Sewer 3400 Flat Rate $173.40 1:00 PM Septic
8/20/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
8/20/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 12:00 PM Septic
8/23/2021 Helmer 3200 Flat Rate $183.60 ‐ Septic
8/24/2021 Weidner 3350 Flat Rate $204.00 8:45 AM Septic
8/25/2021 Helmer 3250 Flat Rate $183.60 9:30 AM Septic
8/25/2021 Helmer 3200 Flat Rate $183.60 7:45 AM Septic
8/26/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:20 AM Septic
8/26/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 9:30 AM Septic
8/26/2021 Comm. Sewer 2000 Flat Rate $173.40 11:30 AM Septic
8/26/2021 Aarow 3500 Flat Rate $178.50 12:20 PM Septic
8/27/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:30 AM Septic
8/27/2021 Helmer 3000 Flat Rate $183.60 8:30 AM Septic
8/27/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 8:30 AM Septic
8/31/2021 Helmer 3400 Flat Rate $183.60 11:30 AM Septic
8/31/2021 Helmer 3400 Flat Rate $183.60 1:20 PM Septic

Ju
ly

Au
gu
st



9/1/2021 Arrow 3500 Flat Rate $178.50 9:40 AM Septic
9/1/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 12:00 PM Septic
9/1/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 3:30 PM Septic
9/2/2021 Arrow 3000 Flat Rate $178.50 10:55 AM Septic
9/2/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
9/3/2021 Weidner 3750 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
9/8/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:20 AM Septic
9/8/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 11:15 AM Septic
9/8/2021 Helmer 3200 Flat Rate $183.60 10:30 AM Septic
9/9/2021 Arrow 3000 Flat Rate $178.50 9:55 AM Septic
9/9/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 8:10 AM Septic
9/9/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:10 AM Septic

9/10/2021 Arrow 3450 Flat Rate $178.50 10:15 AM Septic
9/10/2021 Helmer 3000 Flat Rate $183.60 1:00 PM Septic
9/10/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:30 AM Septic
9/13/2021 Helmer 3000 Flat Rate $183.60 11:40 AM Septic
9/14/2021 Arrow 2000 Flat Rate $178.50 12:45 PM Septic
9/14/2021 Helmer 2900 Flat Rate $183.60 9:45 AM Septic
9/14/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:05 AM Septic
9/15/2021 Comm. Sewer 2500 Flat Rate $173.40 11:00 AM Septic
9/15/2021 Comm. Sewer 2500 Flat Rate $173.40 3:00 PM Septic
9/15/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 8:30 AM Septic
9/15/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 1:20 PM Septic
9/16/2021 Helmer 3100 Flat Rate $183.60 8:30 AM Septic
9/17/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
9/20/2021 Helmer 3600 Flat Rate $183.60 10:40 AM Septic
9/21/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 11:30 AM Septic
9/21/2021 Weidner 3750 Flat Rate $204.00 1:45 PM Septic
9/22/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 12:15 PM Septic
9/24/2021 Helmer 3000 Flat Rate $183.60 10:10 AM Septic
9/24/2021 Weidner 3750 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
9/24/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 12:15 PM Septic
9/26/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 9:00AM Septic
9/27/2021 Weidner 3750 Flat Rate $204.00 9:25 AM Septic
9/29/2021 Helmer 3100 Flat Rate $183.60 2:45 PM Septic
9/30/2021 Helmer 3600 Flat Rate $183.60 1:20 PM Septic
9/30/2021 Helmer 3100 Flat Rate $183.60 10:30 AM Septic

Se
pt
em

be
r



10/1/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 8:50 AM Septic
10/4/2021 Helmer 3300 Flat Rate $183.60 9:30 AM Septic
10/4/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 11:30 AM Septic
10/4/2021 Helmer 3200 Flat Rate $183.60 12:40 PM Septic
10/5/2021 Comm. Sewer 1500 Flat Rate $173.40 11:15 AM Septic
10/5/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
10/6/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 9:20 AM Septic
10/6/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 11:00 AM Septic
10/6/2021 Helmer 3200 Flat Rate $183.60 12:30‐ PM Septic
10/7/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
10/7/2021 Aarow 3500 Flat Rate $178.50 2:15 PM Septic
10/8/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 12:30 PM Septic
10/8/2021 Comm. Sewer 3200 Flat Rate $173.40 1:00 PM Septic
10/8/2021 Aarow 3250 Flat Rate $178.50 1:35 PM Septic

10/12/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:10 AM Septic
10/12/2021 Helmer 3400 Flat Rate $183.60 10:00 AM Septic
10/12/2021 Aarow 2750 Flat Rate $178.50 10:30 AM Septic
10/13/2021 Comm. Sewer 1500 Flat Rate $173.40 10:45 AM Septic
10/13/2021 Comm. Sewer 2000 Flat Rate $173.40 1:30 PM Septic
10/13/2021 Helmer 3250 Flat Rate $183.60 9:30 AM Septic
10/14/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:20 AM Septic
10/15/2021 Comm. Sewer 2700 Flat Rate $173.40 9:00 AM Septic
10/15/2021 Helmer 3600 Flat Rate $183.60 10:00 AM Septic
10/15/2021 Weidner 3000 Flat Rate $204.00 11:10 AM Septic
10/15/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 12:00 PM Septic
10/15/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 2:30 PM Septic
10/18/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 9:40 AM Septic
10/19/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 9:40 AM Septic
10/19/2021 Helmer 3600 Flat Rate $183.60 10:30 AM Septic
10/19/2021 Helmer 2850 Flat Rate $183.60 1:00 PM Septic
10/20/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:00 AM Septic
10/21/2021 Comm. Sewer 2950 Flat Rate $173.40 9:00 AM Septic
10/21/2021 Helmer 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 9:00 AM Septic
10/21/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 10:00 AM Septic
10/22/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 11:25 AM Septic
10/25/2021 Helmer 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 9:35 AM Septic
10/26/2021 Aarow 1500 Flat Rate $178.50 11:30 AM Septic
10/26/2021 Aarow 3000 Flat Rate $178.50 1:35 PM Septic
10/27/2021 Helmer 3600 Flat Rate $183.60 10:00 AM Septic
10/27/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 10:30 AM Septic
10/27/2021 Helmer 3000 Flat Rate $183.60 12:00 PM Septic
10/28/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 10:00 AM Septic
10/28/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 12:30 PM Septic
10/28/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:00 AM Septic
10/29/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 8:55 AM Septic
10/29/2021 Helmer 3100 Flat Rate $183.60 11:50 AM Septic
10/29/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 12:45 PM Septic

O
ct
ob

er



11/2/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:10 AM Septic
11/2/2021 Comm. Sewer 3100 Flat Rate $173.40 10:30 AM Septic
11/2/2021 Helmer 3200 Flat Rate $183.60 10:45 AM Septic
11/3/2021 Aarow 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 12:10 PM Septic
11/3/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 2:30 PM Septic
11/3/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:25 AM Septic
11/4/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 10:00 AM Septic
11/4/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic
11/5/2021 Aarow 3250 Flat Rate $178.50 12:30 PM Septic
11/5/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 2:30 PM Septic
11/8/2021 Comm. Sewer 2600 Flat Rate $173.40 8:45 AM Septic
11/8/2021 Helmer 3600 Flat Rate $183.60 10:45 AM Septic
11/9/2021 Aarow 2500 Flat Rate $183.60 10:10 AM Septic
11/9/2021 Comm. Sewer 2600 Flat Rate $173.40 11:10 AM Septic
11/9/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:15 AM Septic

11/10/2021 Helmer 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 11:30 AM Septic
11/10/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 8:45 AM Septic
11/11/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 1:15 PM Septic
11/12/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 1:20 PM Septic
11/12/2021 Helmer 3100 Flat Rate $183.60 11:30 AM Septic
11/15/2021 Comm. Sewer 2600 Flat Rate $173.40 12:30 PM Septic
11/15/2021 Comm. Sewer 2600 Flat Rate $173.40 9:40 AM Septic
11/16/2021 Comm. Sewer 2600 Flat Rate $173.40 1:15 PM Septic
11/16/2021 Helmer 3600 Flat Rate $183.60 12:45 PM Septic
11/16/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 2:00 PM Septic
11/18/2021 Helmer 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 12:30 PM Septic
11/18/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:10 AM Septic
11/19/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:05 AM Septic
11/22/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 ‐ Septic
11/22/2021 Weidner 3500 Flat Rate $204.00 9:10 AM Septic
11/23/2021 Helmer 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 11:00 AM Septic
11/24/2021 Helmer 3500 Flat Rate $183.60 11:30 AM Septic
11/24/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 9:25 AM Septic
11/29/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 10:30 AM Septic
12/3/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 7:30 AM Septic
12/3/2021 Helmer 3000 Flat Rate $183.60 8:30 AM Septic
12/3/2021 Helmer 3000 Flat Rate $183.60 10:25 AM Septic
12/3/2021 Weidner 3600 Flat Rate $204.00 9:40 AM Septic
12/8/2021 Helmer 3250 Flat Rate $183.60 10:35 AM Septic
12/8/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 1:30 PM Septic
12/9/2021 Helmer 3250 Flat Rate $183.60 9:45 AM Septic
12/9/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 1:30 PM Septic

12/10/2021 Comm. Sewer 3200 Flat Rate $173.40 ‐ Septic
12/13/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 9:00 AM Septic
12/13/2021 Weidner 3300 Flat Rate $183.60 11:20 AM Septic
12/14/2021 Helmer 2950 Flat Rate $183.60 10:00 AM Septic
12/15/2021 Helmer 3250 Flat Rate $183.60 11:15 AM Septic
12/16/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 12:00 PM Septic
12/20/2021 Helmer 3600 Flat Rate $183.60 9:30 AM Septic
12/20/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 11:35 AM Septic
12/22/2021 Helmer 3400 Flat Rate $183.60 10:30 AM Septic
12/23/2021 Comm. Sewer 3000 Flat Rate $173.40 11:30 AM Septic
12/23/2021 Helmer 3281 Flat Rate $183.60 10:30 AM Septic
12/23/2021 Weidner 3800 Flat Rate $204.00 2:00 PM Septic
12/28/2021 Weidner 3700 Flat Rate $204.00 9:10 AM Septic
12/29/2021 Helmer 3050 Flat Rate $183.60 12:30 PM Septic
12/23/2022 Weidner 3550 Flat Rate $204.00 9:30 AM Septic

De
ce
m
be

r
N
ov
em

be
r



NMWRD Service Connection Permit Tracking

FY 2021-22

Permit Date Address City
Subdivision/

Business

Re-Connect, 

Repair, Demo or 

New Connection

Permit Owner Permit No.
Connection/ 

Inspection Fee

Darrell Road Special 

Connection Fee

6/10/2021
31500 US Highway 12

- Buona Beef
LM Lakemoor Commons New Connection Lakemoor Ventures 5658 32,565.00$                       13,920.00$                            

6/17/2021 32040 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5659 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

6/30/2021 32056 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5660 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

6/30/2021 32072 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5661 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

6/30/2021 32053 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5662 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

7/7/2021 110 Southern Terrace Drive IL Island Lake Estates Repair Kullas 624-A -$                                   -$                                        

7/28/2021 32055 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5663 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

7/30/2021 2317 Fenview Circle IL Prairie Woods New Connection Pulte Group 5664 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

8/13/2021
27450 IL Route 120

- Building A (Chipotle)
LM Lakemoor Commons New Connection Lakemoor Retail Partners 5665 30,396.00$                       12,992.00$                            

8/13/2021
27450 IL Route 120

- Building B (Future Multi-Tenant)
LM Lakemoor Commons New Connection Lakemoor Retail Partners 5666 32,865.00$                       13,920.00$                            

8/13/2021
27450 IL Route 120

- Building C/D (Future Tenant and Starbucks)
LM Lakemoor Commons New Connection Lakemoor Retail Partners 5667 32,665.00$                       13,920.00$                            

8/17/2021 28601 Augusta Lane LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5669 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

8/23/2021 32060 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5668 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

9/21/2021
27565 IL Route 120

- Woodman's Car Wash
LM Lakemoor Commons Expansion Woodmans / J Pease Construction 5634-A 194,755.00$                    32,480.00$                            

10/27/2021 32062 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5670 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

11/17/2021 28607 Augusta Lane LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5671 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

12/21/2021 2408 Fenview Circle IL Prairie Woods New Connection Pulte Group / Veruna LLC 5673 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

12/21/2021 2433 Fenview Circle IL Prairie Woods New Connection Pulte Group / Veruna LLC 5674 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

12/21/2021 1935 Foxridge Drive IL Prairie Woods New Connection Pulte Group / Veruna LLC 5675 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

12/21/2021 1929 Foxridge Drive IL Prairie Woods New Connection Pulte Group / Veruna LLC 5676 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

1/4/2022 32030 Savannah Drive LM Savannahs New Connection William Ryan Homes 5677 7,674.00$                         3,248.00$                               

Standard Connections Darrel Road Connections

FY 2021 - 2022 Total: 438,356.00$                    135,952.00$                          

Approved Budget FY 2021 - 2022 122,584.00$                    22,736.00$                            

Approved +/- vs. Current YTD 315,772.00$                    113,216.00$                          



 
 

 
 

NMWRD December 2021 Operations Report 
January 6th, 2021 
Prepared by: Luke Markko, Superintendent 
 
Rising Lead Times & Prices – We appear to have reached a moment of stability in this area for now.  While 
prices and lead times have increased, adjustments have been made in light of these changes to maintain 
operations.  We will continue to maintain regular contact with our suppliers to stay in front of any changes and 
make proactive adjustments to material and equipment procurements. 
 

• eOne Pumps – The District is currently maintaining an adequate inventory of eOne grinder pumps for 
the low-pressure system serving the approximately 250 residences in the Fox River Valley Gardens 
neighborhood in Port Barrington following the supply chain shortages that came to a head this past 
September.  Inventory has dropped from 22 pumps in October to 16.  Our last update on lead times 
was 16 weeks.  A resupply order is being put together at this time. 

 
• Vehicles – No Change – Status Uncertain: The 2009 Ford F-450 Mini-Dump vehicle was budgeted for 

replacement and an order was submitted to have the replacement chassis built.  However, we 
received correspondence that there is very real possibility that the vehicle may not even hit the 
assembly line to be built.  The same goes for an F-250 pickup that was ordered.  The ongoing 
microchip shortage that has been making news headlines for several months now is to blame 
according to the dealerships with the vehicle bid contracts. 
 

• Polymer – No Change – Status Stable: The District utilizes polymer in the dewatering stage of solids 
handling.  It is mixed with the sludge prior to entering the centrifuge to promote water/solids 
separation prior to the biosolids being dried and then stored prior to farm application.  We have seen 
no indication of price increases yet, but it can be expected to come soon, especially with a contracted 
bid price expiring at the end of April.  Lead times have been climbing significantly.  An order that was 
once fulfilled in a week went to 7 weeks and is now at 12 weeks. Orders have been scheduled through 
April 2022 with the last order providing a 6-month supply that will see us into October.  This will see 
us past the expiration of our currently contracted bid price and maximize the value until we need to 
place an order under a new contract in FY 22’-23’. 

 
• Disinfection Chemicals – No Change – Status Stable: The District currently utilizes chemical addition 

for disinfection of the final effluent leaving the facility before it is reintroduced to the environment.  
This accomplished with Sodium Hypochlorite, essentially a concentrated bleach solution and Sodium 
Bisulfite, a chemical that is added to neutralize any remaining free chlorine in the water prior to 
discharge. These chemicals are critical in meeting our IEPA NPDES permit requirements for fecal 
coliform limits and residual chlorine limits.  While there have not been any troubles with the Sodium 
Bisulfite yet, it can be expected to succumb to the lead time and cost increases we are seeing 
elsewhere. October saw a new negotiated price on sodium hypochlorite take our cost jump from 
$1.06 per gallon to $1.50 per gallon.  This significant increase in cost has prompted staff to begin 
further optimizing the chemical usage in our disinfection process, while keeping the final effluent 
fecal coliform concentrations within NPDES permitted limits. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Rising Lead Times & Prices Cont… 

 
• Phosphorous Removal Chemical – No Change – Status Stable: The is the most recent item to see 

supply chain impacts.  The District utilizes a poly aluminum chloride solution to remove dissolved 
phosphorus from the wastewater during the treatment process.  While product lead times have not 
been impacted, prices can be expected to climb.  We currently have a contracted bid price of $3.09 
per gallon with our supplier, Chemtrade Logistics.  Chemtrade Logistics recently indicated that they 
were going to be increasing our cost to $4.73 per gallon until they were reminded that they have a 
contracted bid price valid through April.  However, this is a good indication of where a future bid price 
may be. 
 

Sludge Conveyor – We have been informed that the second conveyor has been assembled and is currently 
awaiting shipment from Iowa.  Our winterization modifications consisting of electric heat trace and reflective 
insulation have had their first exposures to cold weather operation.  The latter half of December brought with 
it below-freezing temperatures and the first week of January allowed us to test operation in the single digits.  
The conveyor has performed remarkably well thus far.  However, we still have a lot of winter ahead of us, and 
we will be resting easier once we have an additional conveyor to serve as a backup. District staff continue 
working with Don’s Welding, a local welder/fabricator, to fabricate an enclosed hopper to bridge the gap 
between the conveyor exiting the Dewatering Building and the mobile conveyor outside.  While improving 
aesthetics, the hopper has several functional advantages. It will provide additional safety by creating a physical 
barrier in front of moving parts, protect against weather by keeping rainwater out of the sludge we’ve worked 
so hard to dry out, and it can have additional heat trace and insulation installed to further protect against 
freezing conditions.   
 

  
         Sludge being conveyed at a balmy 2℉!                                     Once enclosed there will be further heat retention. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Televising Camera – Repairs have been completed on the televising camera module and it will be put back into 
use.  Staff were able continue televising operations via the use of a loaner unit that was supplied as repairs 
were made to the District’s camera module.  We were informed that finding support for the particular model 
of camera module the District currently owns may become increasingly difficult due to it’s age.  The camera 
equipment dates to 2010. 
 

  
             Recently repaired camera module ready to be installed.                 Camera module will be installed on transport tractor 
                      as seen above. 
 
Control Building Electrical Upgrades: See Engineering Report for Additional Details: District Staff and those of 
Trotter and Associates participated in a pre-construction meeting with a representative from Pieper Electric, 
Inc. to review the Control Building Electrical Upgrade project.  In summary, this project involves the removal, 
replacement, and relocation of power distribution equipment for the wastewater treatment plant. A timeline 
was put forth with mobilization beginning this coming February and an estimated final completion date in 
early June.  Operations staff will be preparing for this work by removing equipment and materials from the 
work areas in advance of the project commencement. 
 
Treatment Plant Emergency Generator – Over the last several years, we have found ourselves making costly 
repairs to the generator that supplies emergency power in the event of an electrical outage.  Installed in 1998, 
it has had the main controller replaced several times, and has had portions of those controllers replaces due to 
failure.  Recently the contactor that supplies power to the block heater has failed, requiring a replacement part 
to be ordered.  We will begin evaluating a suitable replacement and costs.  Update: Following repairs to the 
generator block heater, a coolant leak has developed on the engine body.  This will require some disassembly of 
the engine to replace gaskets and replace coolant at a planned time in the future.  Alternate Power is the 
District’s current contracted generator servicer.  They have ordered the necessary parts and are awaiting their 
arrival prior to scheduling the repairs. District Staff have instructed Trotter and Associates to begin a project file 
on the replacement of the treatment plant backup generator. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

WWTP Access Improvements: See Engineer’s Report for additional information.  The curb that was laid at an 
improper elevation has been removed and additional stone has been laid and graded to provide access to the 
western extent of the treatment plant.  With snow finally falling in our region, Operations staff have been 
experimenting with the front-end loader, skid-steer, and truck plow to determine which equipment is best 
suited for snow removal operations while disturbing as little of the graded stone as possible. 
 

 
Curbs removed and stone graded. 

 
OSHA Inspection – On Friday December 3rd, we had a surprise inspection of the wastewater treatment facility 
conducted by the Illinois Department of Labor Illinois Occupation Safety and Health Administration (OSHA).  It 
was explained to me that they were conducting random inspections in the region that have never had prior 
inspections.  A staff member lead the inspector throughout the facility and safety-related documentation was 
requested for review.  Our documentation has been submitted, and we can expect a report on their findings 
sometime towards the end of December or early January. Update: While we have yet to receive a report 
following the December 3rd inspection, there has been some correspondence with the inspector with follow-
up questions requesting details about the District’s use of cranes and hoists, along with the expected time that 
Emergency Medical Services could be available to staff throughout the District’s service area.  Updates to 
follow once we have received OSHA’s report. 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

NMWRD Engineering Report 
Date: January 7th, 2022 

Prepared by: Joe Lapastora, E.I.T. – Staff Engineer

 
Holiday Hills / Le Villa Vaupell Sanitary Sewer Extension (Nunda): 
[Project Update] – As alluded to on previous Engineering Reports, the District has moved 
forward with phasing the HH/LVV project based on the recommendation provided by Trotter 
and Associates, Inc (TAI). Both the District and TAI continued to progress the HH/LVV project 
through the month of December through various efforts including notification of phasing 
plans to all applicable parties, lift station site appraisal was received by District that is 
currently being reviewed by Victor Filippini to assist with the purchase agreement, District 
certification of the NPDES construction permit, completion of Phase 1 project drawings and 
specifications, permits have been progressed to a point where they have either been received 
or are currently under review by the reviewing agency, and project plan amendment follow-
up items among other items. The District moved forward with bidding Phase 1 with the 
Invitation to Bid being published on December 22nd. The anticipated schedule moving forward 
is as follows; Bid Opening is scheduled for Tuesday, February 8th, loan agreement issuance is 
anticipated in April 2022, and construction commencement anticipated in May 2022. The 
project will receive funding via two mechanisms: SRF loan and Unsewered Community 
Construction (UCC) Grant, both administered by the Illinois EPA. SRF funds in fiscal year 2022 
have been allocated to the project in the amount of $7,000,000. The District’s UCC grant 
award is for $3,495,600. The Phase 1 project amount will be capped at $6,700,000. Therefore, 
the total anticipated loan amount is $3,204,400. With the District moving forward with the 
bid advertisement, the weekly work sessions with TAI were reduced to an as-needed basis 
with only two meetings held in December. Weekly meeting topics discussed during the month 
of December included project phasing effects on grant funding, resident letter clean-up and 
distribution, land acquisition for lift station, permit status updates, easement status updates, 
and additional funding opportunities. TAI has continued their efforts to assemble an IEPA 
Water Pollution Control Loan application which requires an enacted loan authorizing 
ordinance, a legal opinion, and a resolution authorizing a staff member(s) to sign loan 
documents, all of which were included and reviewed and approved at the November 2021 
Board Meeting. The District is still working on TAI’s Request for Information (RFI) that will aid 
in the submission of the loan application. We are currently waiting for preliminary reports 
from Phil McKenna that should contain any remaining information required for TAI’s RFI. 
Finally, other noteworthy accomplishments through the month of December include receipt 
of the Village of Holiday Hills Ordinance requiring their residents to connect to the sanitary 
sewer once its available to them, Holiday Hills grant agreement was executed and sent off  to 
the IEPA, return comments from McHenry County Stormwater Permit were received and TAI 



 
 

 
 

is working on revisions, and the District and TAI are pursuing a Community Development Block 
Grant (CBDB) funding application and some initial steps have been taking including the 
completion of a draft resolution authorizing the request for program funds. Note that the 
final resident letter was mailed out in early January and a digital version of the letter, along 
with the phasing exhibit and FAQ sheet, have been added to the District website. 
 

 
HH/LVV Sanitary Sewer Extension – Project Phasing Exhibit 

 
Control Building Electrical: 
[Project Update] – The District previously entered into a grant agreement with IL DCEO for a 
grant amount totalling $200,000. As part of the grant agreement, the District is required to 
submit monthly deliverables in the form of two (2) documents; Periodic Financial Reports 
(PFR) and Periodic Performance Reports (PPR) that detail project expenses and project 
timeline checkpoints that must be submitted to our grant manger. The District has submitted 
all reports to date with all reports receiving approval by our IEPA grant manager. The District 



 
 

 
 

awarded the contract to Pieper Electric via the public bid process and subsequently held a 
pre-construction meeting on December 8th with Jillian Kiss and Richard Fouts from TAI as well 
as Andy Bean from Pieper Electric in attendance. A preliminary project timeline was provided 
at the pre-con meeting and mobilization at the plant is set to begin in late February 2022 with 
a final completion date set for early June 2022. With the proposed timeline provided by Pieper 
Electric, we noticed that the final completion date fell outside of the signed grant agreement 
dates. The District submitted a Request for Modification form along with an Extension 
Request on December 17th that would align with the Pieper schedule. It is likely that we will 
receive the extension request decision in January.  
 

        

 
Asset Management: 
[Project Update] – The District continued with Phase 2 implementation of our Asset 
Management Software (Cartegraph) through December as we prepare for full integration of 
the WWTP. District Superintendent, Luke Markko, and District Staff Engineer, Joe Lapastora, 
participated in the virtual requirements gathering workshop on January 3rd & 4th and follow-
up items are being completed. Follow-up items include delivery of all existing planned 
maintenance templates, delivery of equipment and workflow SOPs, ESRI integration with new 
WWTP shapefiles and more. Since Phase 1 (completed in 2020) included the implementation 
of the District’s Collection system, the District has continued to incorporate the Cartegraph 
software on the dedicated televising laptop for streamlined data entry into our Cartegraph 
atlas. 
 
Sewer Televising & Cleaning Plan:  
[Project Update] – District staff were able to get some useful experience with the new 
televising van and televising equipment through December. The televising camera was sent 
to Aeries for repair in early December and a loaner unit was used for most of December. 



 
 

 
 

Coinciding with the preliminary usage of the televising van and equipment, District 
Superintendent, Luke Marrko, and District Staff Engineer, Joe Lapastora, will continue to work 
together to create an SoP for District Operators to follow in an effort to maintain consistency 
of cleaning and televising efforts across all Operators. 
 
Phosphorous Discharge Optimization Plan: 
[Project Update] – District staff have continued to follow-up on PDOP punchlist items 
provided by Fehr Graham through various months of 2021 as different items require different 
implementation deadlines. District Superintendent, Luke Markko, and District Staff Engineer, 
Joe Lapastora, met with District Lab Technician, Emily Lecuyer, in early November to review 
the list in its entirety and schedule remaining tasks to ensure all items are completed within 
the originally proposed timeline. Emily will perform all tests that we can do in-house and has 
proven to be extremely resourceful in our PDOP testing thus far. See the task list below for a 
look at remaining tasks that will be completed by the end of the first quarter of 2022. Note 
that all tasks are in-progress, however, not yet completed because some tasks require a 
weekly/monthly testing frequency to grab a meaningful data representation, while other 
tasks will require out of house lab testing. Joe and Luke will produce a collection of formal 
memos for each task to satisfy the internal checks that are required per the District’s PDOP.  
 
 

 
Updated Action Items tracking from PDOP. 

 
Darrell Road Phase 1A – Headworks: 
[Project Update] – The District purchased a Headworks brand MS2 bar screen in April 2020 
and the District requested a proposal for bidding services from TAI. District Staff met with TAI 
staff on November 5th for a Kickoff Meeting to discuss project planning and design overview. 



 
 

 
 

The District held two (2) meetings with TAI through the month of December to discuss 
headworks design, soil borings and geotechnical exploration, easement acquisition / property 
purchase, and permit preparation among other items. A bid date has yet to be determined. 
 
WWTP Access Improvements 
[Project Update] – The District held a public bid opening for the WWTP Access Improvements 
Project on Monday, November 8th and ultimately awarded the public bid to Chicagoland 
Paving Contractors (CPC). The November Engineering Report alluded to curb issues and 
subsequent discussions to remediate the unsatisfactory work. A Notice of Defaults was issued 
to CPC on December 7th and a follow-up letter was sent on December 18th to both CPC and 
West Bend Mutual Insurance Company (“Surety”). The December 16th notice detailed five (5) 
requirements for Corrective Work for an interim winter solution that must be completed by 
CPC prior to December 27th, at no cost to the District, to make the site safe for the winter 
months. All corrective work was completed prior to the December 27th deadline and the 
District issued an acceptance e-mail on December 20th. CPC will resume all other work under 
the original public bid contract in April 2022. 
 

 
Wegner Road Storm Improvements (Lakemoor): 
[Project Update] – The District received final revised engineering plans along with response 
letters, ACOE wetland determination correspondence, confirmation of no wetlands from 
McHenry Stormwater as well as a stormwater report in early December. The District sent all 
documents to Jillian Kiss with TAI for her to provide a response as she performed the previous 
two (2) iterations of the plan review. The District was provided with a copy of a Letter of No 
Objection from the ACOE for the referenced project. A project start date has yet to be set and 
District operators will continue to monitor JULIE locates for any upcoming work. 
 



 
 

 
 

Woodman’s Lift Station and Sanitary Sewer Additions (Lakemoor): 
[Project Update] – This project is in the three (3) year maintenance period which is set to close 
on February 11, 2023. No new updates.  
 
Lakemoor Commons Outlot 5B (Lakemoor): 
[Project Update] – Lakemoor Commons Lot 5B construction is still under progress which 
includes four (4) separate buildings. Chipotle (Building A) and Starbucks (Building D) are 
confirmed while Building B has a few confirmed tenants and Building C is still untenanted. 
Sanitary sewer related construction started on September 20th and Berger Excavating 
(sanitary contractor) has wrapped up all sanitary sewer related construction as of late 
November. Note that all testing has been completed with all manholes and mains passing 
their respective tests. District Staff Engineer, Joe Lapastora, and District Engineering Intern, 
Maren Prokup, performed a punchlist walk of the construction site on December 23rd and a 
punchlist document detailing all remaining items to be completed was issued to Berger 
Excavating on December 30th. The punchlist memo requests that the District be informed 
once all punchlist items are completed so that a District staff member can perform a final 
walk of the project site prior to approval. The District is currently unaware of any opening 
dates for any of the four (4) buildings located at Lakemoor Commons Outlot 5B. 
 
Buona Beef Restaurant (Lakemoor): 
[Project Update] – All sanitary related construction was completed in late July and all testing 
has been completed with all manholes and mains passing their respective tests. District Staff 
Engineer, Joe Lapastora, and District Engineering Intern, Maren Prokup, performed a 
punchlist walk of the construction site on December 23rd and a punchlist document detailing 
all remaining items to be completed was issued to Berger Excavating on December 30th. The 
punchlist memo requests that the District be informed once all punchlist items are completed 
so that a District staff member can perform a final walk of the project site prior to approval. 
Buona Beef is set to open in February of 2022.  
 
Woodmans Car Wash 3rd Bay Extension (Lakemoor): 
[Project Update] – The sanitary sewer extension work was completed through two work-days 
in mid-October that included approximately 45’ of pipe being tied into the existing private 
service line to serve the 3rd bay. The second day was simply focused on connecting the SDR 
26 PVC private service line to the Schedule 40 PVC plumbing. The District will look to approve 
the work in January.  
 
Dollar General (Island Lake): 
[Project Update] – The District received preliminary plans for a proposed Dollar General 
development located at the Southwest corner of the intersection of Route 176 and Water’s 



 
 

 
 

Edge Road in Island Lake in September. The plans were accompanied by an escrow deposit 
check for plan/legal review and the plans were sent to TAI for review in early October. TAI 
provided comments of their initial review and also provided a second review in the form of 
determining current capacity of the sewers and lift stations downstream of the proposed 
development. All previous plan review comments have been addressed and the District 
determined that no further revisions are needed at this time. A project start date has yet to 
be set and the District will periodically check-in with Hurley and Stewart (deign engineer) to 
ensure that they meet all requirements needed prior to the District issuing a permit. 
 
In addition to the work relating to the above projects, the following engineering related 
work is also being performed;       

 
- The District brought back our former summer 2021 Engineering Intern, Maren Prokup, for a 

winter stint with the District. Through the course of three (3) weeks, Maren proved to be 
extremely resourceful and completed many tasks. Maren has provided the following updates; 

 
o Phosphorous Discharge Optimization (PDOP) Memos 

 As part of the District’s plan to optimize the plant to reach a final effluent of 
0.5 mg/L of total phosphorous by 2030, Maren gathered and formulated data 
and logistics of our approach into ten (10) memos that address the Action 
Items laid out in the District’s PDOP. 
 

o  Project Punchlists and Closeout Tasks for Buona Beef and Lakemoor Commons Lot 5 
 Maren performed a punch list walkthrough with Joe of the Buona Beef and 

Lakemoor Commons Lot 5 project sites. Maren gathered photos and wrote a 
letter to Berger Excavating with all items to be completed before commercial 
use of the sanitary sewer is permitted. 

 
o Service Connection AutoCAD Drawings 

 As a continuation from her summer internship, Maren drafted all CAD 
drawings for reconnections and new connections that occurred during the 
month that she was with the District. 

 
o Commodity/Service Bid Packages and Renewals 

 The District plans to open five (5) commodity and service bids in the month 
of February, including: Chlorination & Dechlorination Chemicals, eOne 
Pumps, Landscaping Services, Phosphorous Removal Chemicals, and Polymer 
for Solids Handling. Maren created and finalized the front and back-end 
documents for four (4) of these bids with Joe. Three (3) Renewals will also be 



 
 

 
 

issued in the month of April for Diesel Fuel, Delivered, Generator Services, 
and Land Application of Sludge. Maren also finalized cover letters and 
contracts for all of the renewals. Joe will pick this task back up in late January 
noting that Maren took care of most of the heavy work. 

 
o Hauled Waste Permit Applications 

 Maren handled communications and permit creation throughout the month 
of December to issue new permits to all 5 Septage Haulers. 

 

 
 

Hauler Vehicle Plate # Gallons Bill Rate (per load) Weekly Limit for Entire Company

Community Sewer & Septic 2000 Mack 22640Q 3,400 $173.40 10,000 gallons
2007 Peterbilt 37455R 3,600 $183.60
2010 Freightliner 34513R 3,600 $183.60
2020 Kensworth 46896R 4,000 $204.00
2020 Kensworth 47532R 4,000 $204.00
2002 Freightliner 22732MR 3,000 $153.00
2004 Mack 24073Q 3,000 $153.00
2006 Mack 43724R 3,400 $173.40
2006 Mack 21660Q 3,500 $178.50

Helmer Septic 2020 International 27204R 3,600 $183.60 10,000 gallons
1995 Freightliner 17218Q 3000 $153.00
2002 Ster Acterra 19560Q 3000 $153.00
2004 Mack 26160R 3500 $178.50
2008 International 21883Q 3000 $153.00
2016 Kenworth 22824Q 3600 $183.60
2021 Mack 48352R 3500 $178.50
2022 Mack 40860V 3500 $178.50

Weidner's Septic

Rechel Septic 12,000 gallons

25,000 gallons

Arrow Septic 28,000 gallons



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS RECAP FOR December 2021 

                                                                                                   Revised:  1/06/22 by Debi Martin, District Clerk 
 
 
$150-$300  90 Active Accounts 
  Island Lake – 64 customers     
                                               64 Notices of Delinquency                                                                                                                                                                          

Lakemoor – 20 customers 
20 Notices of Delinquency 

Port Barrington – 6 customers 
     6 Notices of Delinquency   
 
$301-500                 37 Active Accounts 
  Island Lake – 18 customers 

 18 Liens – 15 Water Shut Off Notices, 3 Final Water Shut off Notices                                                                                                                                     
                  Lakemoor – 13 customers 
   13 Liens – 4 Final Notices of Delinquency, 4 Water Shut Off Notices, 4 Sewer Disconnection 
                                                                                                                                    Notices, 1 Final Water Shut off Notice                                                                                                                                                                      
  Port Barrington – 6 customers 
   6 Liens - 2 Sewer Disconnection Notices, 4 Final Notices of Delinquency 
         
$501-$1000  13 Active Accounts 

Island Lake – 5 customers 
5 liens – 1 with water off, 3 Final Water Shut off Notices, 1 Sewer Disconnection Notice 

                                Lakemoor – 6 customers 
   6 liens – 1 with water off, 3 to be disconnected from sewer, 2 making payments  
  Port Barrington – 2 customers 
   2 Liens - 2 Sewer Disconnection Notices 

                                                                
$1001 and up  6 Active Accounts  
  Island Lake – 3 customers 
   3 liens – 3 with water off 
  Lakemoor – 3 customers 
   3 liens – 2 tax sales, with 1 to be given to Village of Lakemoor, 1 with water off 
 
 
    
Delinquent Accounts total (active and inactive customers):  $44,261.99     ($11,068.59 inactive accts)   
                                                                                             December 2020’s report:      $42,131.34   
                                                December 2020’s report:     $53,625.85 
 
 
    MONTHLY ACTIVITY: 

4814     Monthly Bills mailed 1/03/22 (for Dec service)                                 90    Notices of Delinquency mailed 1/05/22 
     397     Bills not mailed – customers prepaid on their accounts                  8    Final Notices of Delinquency mailed 1/05/22                                              
       19     Water Shut Off Notices mailed 1/05/22                                         21    Real Estate closings for December 2021                          
         9     Sewer Disconnection Notices mailed 1/05/22                                 7    Final Water Shut off Notice mailed 1/05/22                                                                                                                                                                             
       39     Liens released in December                                                          30   Liens filed in December                                                      
            
                                           

 



 
 

 
 

	
	
Meeting	Date:	 January	11,	2022	
	
Item:					 2022	Tax	Abatement		
	
Staff	Recommendation:	 Motion	to	Adopt	Ordinance	22-01,	authorizing	the	County	Clerks	of	Lake	

and	McHenry	County	to	Abate	and	not	spread	General	Obligation	Bond	
Tax	for	2021	in	the	amount	of	$457,872.00	

	
Staff	Contact:	 	 	 Mohammed	M.	Haque,	District	Manager	
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________	
	
Background:	
Pursuant	to	our	new	2019	General	Obligation	Bond	order,	a	copy	of	which	is	attached,	we	are	required	to	
generate	a	tax	sufficient	to	produce	the	sum	of	$457,872.00.		The	District	has	taken	the	position	over	the	
years	that	we	will	pay	for	our	debt	obligation	through	usual	and	customer	user	fees	and	have	abated	the	
levy	for	this	bond	order.		Accordingly,	for	2021	tax	payable	in	2022,	we	need	to	abate	$457,872.00.		Adoption	
of	this	ordinance	will	allow	staff	to	direct	the	Clerks	of	the	Counties	of	Lake	and	McHenry	to	abate	and	not	
spread	that	tax.	
	
Recommendation:	
Adopt	the	ordinance	abating	the	General	Obligation	Bond	Tax	for	the	2021	tax	year.	
	
Votes	Required	to	Pass:				
Simple	Majority,	via	a	roll	call	vote	
	
	

 
AGENDA ITEM # 10A 

 



 

26473602.1 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-01 

AN ORDINANCE abating taxes levied for year 2021 for the General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2019 of the Northern 
Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the Northern Moraine Wastewater 

Reclamation District, Lake and McHenry Counties, Illinois (the “District”), did adopt an ordinance 

(the “Ordinance”) authorizing the issuance of its $4,100,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 

(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2019 (the “Outstanding Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, said Ordinance was in full force and effect forthwith upon passage, approval 

and publication, and thereafter a certified copy thereof was duly filed in the Office of the County 

Clerks in Lake and McHenry Counties; and 

WHEREAS, said Ordinance did authorize the issuance of the Outstanding Bonds, and did 

provide for the levy of a direct annual tax upon all taxable property within the District in and for 

the year 2021, in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds 

when due in 2022; and 

WHEREAS, principal and interest on the Outstanding Bonds due in 2021 are being paid 

from other available funds thereby eliminating the need for the 2021 tax levy to pay the 

Outstanding Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of the District hereby finds and determines that it is advisable and 

necessary to provide for abatement of the tax heretofore levied for the year 2021 to pay the 

Outstanding Bonds; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT, LAKE AND 

MCHENRY COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 



 

 

Section 1. Abatement.  That it shall be and it is found and determined that the Board 

of the District has provided for the levy of a direct annual tax upon all taxable property within the 

District in and for the year 2021 in an amount sufficient to provide the funds to pay when due the 

principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds heretofore issued by the District.  It is further 

found and determined that the Board deems it advisable and in the best interests of the District to 

provide for abatement of the taxes heretofore levied for the year 2020 pursuant to the Ordinance 

as follows: 

Levy Year Collection Year Total Levy Abatement 
2021 2022 $457,872.00 

 

Section 2. Filing.  A copy of this ordinance, duly certified by the District, which 

certificate shall recite that this ordinance has been adopted by the Board of said District and is in 

full force and effect, shall be filed with the County Clerks of Lake and McHenry Counties, Illinois, 

shall constitute authority for each County Clerk for the year 2021, to abate the said levy in the 

amounts and in said year as shown above in Section 1 associated with the Outstanding Bonds. 

Section 3. Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this ordinance shall 

be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such 

section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this ordinance. 

Section 4. Publication.  The District is hereby authorized and directed to publish this 

ordinance and to file copies thereof for public inspection in his/her office. 

Section 5. Conflicting Ordinances.  All ordinances, resolutions and parts of ordinances 

and resolutions, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 6. Headings.  The headings or titles of the several sections shall be solely for 

convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect of this ordinance. 



 

 

Section 7. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 

after its adoption and publication. 

ADOPTED this January 11, 2022, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows:  

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED this January 11, 2022. 

 
 
 

 
_________________________________________ 
President, Board of Trustees 
Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation 
District 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Trustees 
Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation 
District 

 

  



 
 

26473602.1 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )   SS 
COUNTY OF LAKE ) 

FILING CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk, 
County of Lake, Illinois, and as such official I do further certify that on the _____ day of 
__________, 2022, there was filed in my office a duly certified copy of Ordinance No. _______ 
entitled: 

 
AN ORDINANCE abating taxes levied for year 2021 for the General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2019 of the Northern 
Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District. 

duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District, 
on the __ day of _________, 2022, and that the same has been deposited in the official files and 
records of my office. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said 

County, this __ day of _________, 2022. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
County Clerk of Lake, Illinois 
 

(SEAL) 

  



 

26473602.1 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )   SS 
COUNTY OF MCHENRY ) 

FILING CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk, 
County of McHenry, Illinois, and as such official I do further certify that on the _____ day of 
__________, 2022, there was filed in my office a duly certified copy of Ordinance No. _______ 
entitled: 

 
AN ORDINANCE abating taxes levied for year 2021 for the General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2019 of the Northern 
Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District. 

duly adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District, 
on the __ day of _________, 2022, and that the same has been deposited in the official files and 
records of my office. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said 

County, this __ day of _________, 2022. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
County Clerk of McHenry, Illinois 
 

(SEAL) 

 



CERTIFICATION 
 
 

I, Deborah Martin, Clerk in and for the NORTHERN MORAINE 
WASTEWATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT, Island Lake, Illinois, and 
keeper of the official records, files and seal thereof, do hereby certify that the 
attached document is a true and correct copy of: 
 

“ORDINANCE 22-01”  “AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE TAX 
ON THE NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER RECLAMATION 
DISTRICT GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE 
SOURCE) SERIES 2019, FOR THE YEAR OF 2021.” 
 

Passed and approved by the Board of Trustees of the NORTHERN 
MORAINE WASTEWATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT Island Lake, 
Illinois. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 
corporate seal of the NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER 
RECLAMATION DISTRICT, Island Lake, Illinois, this 11th day of January, 
2022. 
 
 
     _____________________________________ 

 Deborah Martin, District Clerk 
 
 
 
 
  (SEAL) 
   
 











 
 

 
 

	
	
Meeting	Date:	 January	11,	2022	
	
Item:					 Community	Development	Block	Grant	Funding	Application		
	
Staff	Recommendation:	 Motion	to	Approve	Resolution	22-01	Authorizing	 the	Request	of	Funds	

from	 the	McHenry	 County	 CDBG	 Fund	 in	 the	 amount	 of	 $200,000	 the	
Village	of	Holiday	Hills	for	Public	Infrastructure	

	
Staff	Contact:	 	 	 Mohammed	M.	Haque,	District	Manager	
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________	
	
Background:	
The	 District	 has	made	 application	with	 the	McHenry	 County	 CDBG	 for	 grant	 funding	 in	 the	 amount	 of	
$200,000	 for	 the	 public	 infrastructure	 improvements	 in	 the	 Village	 of	 Holiday	Hills.	 	 This	 is	 an	 annual	
funding	 mechanism	 with	 $1.5	 million	 in	 overall	 annual	 funding	 available	 to	 McHenry	 County	 for	
dispersement.	 	 	The	District	 is	hopeful	that	this	will	help	with	the	costs	to	bring	public	 infrastructure	to	
Holiday	Hills.	 	Trotter	&	Associates	assisted	the	District	to	get	this	application	completed	and	submitted.		
Future	annual	applications	should	be	more	straightforward.	
	
The	application	was	submitted	on	January	4,	2021	to	meet	the	deadline.		This	action	ratifies	our	decision	to	
apply	and	will	be	needed	for	the	followup	to	the	application.	
	
Recommendation:	
Adopt	the	Resolution	Authorizing	the	CDBG	Application.	
	
Votes	Required	to	Pass:				
Simple	Majority,	via	a	roll	call	vote	
	
	

 
AGENDA ITEM # 10B 

 



 

{00030994 2} 1 
 

NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER RECLAMATION 

DISTRICT TO REQUEST FUNDS FROM THE MCHENRY COUNTY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DIVISION IN THE AMOUNT OF $200,000 FOR PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE 
INSTALLATIONS (SANITARY SEWER, LIFT STATION, AND FORCE MAIN IMPROVEMENTS) 

IN THE VILLAGE OF HOLIDAY HILLS. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Community Development Block Grant program (“CDBG”) administered by 

the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) provides funds to 

qualified cities and counties on an entitlement basis; and 

WHEREAS, CDBG grant funds must meet national objectives as defined by the HUD, 

including benefit to low and moderate income persons; and 

WHEREAS, CDBG grant funds must also meet local objectives, as defined by the McHenry 

County Community Development Division; and 

WHEREAS, the Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District, being a sanitary district 

located in McHenry and Lake Counties, Illinois (the “District”), and the Village of Holiday Hills, 

McHenry County, Illinois (the “Village”) have entered into an intergovernmental agreement (the 

“IGA”) for the extension of public sanitary sewerage facilities within and around the Village (the 

“Sewer System Extension”), which Sewer Facilities are intended to abate the release of septage 

from private septic systems in the Village into the Fox River and its associated waterways (the “Fox 

River”); and   

WHEREAS, the Sewer System Extension is anticipated to include various sewer facilities, 

including without limitation the installation of sanitary sewer, lift station, and force main facilities 

and equipment (collectively, the “Sewer Facilities”); and   

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the District have determined that installation of 

Sewer Facilities will further the intergovernmental cooperation reflected in the IGA, will support 

and comport with the objectives of HUD and the McHenry County Community Development 

Division, and will promote the public health, safety, and welfare by improving the public and 



 

{00030994 2} 2 
 

environmental health in neighborhoods in and around the Village with low- and moderate-income 

housing and families; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES OF THE DISTRICT, MCHENRY AND LAKE COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated 

into and made a part of this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2. Authorization; Ratification.  The District President, District Manager, and 

District Clerk (as well as their designees) are hereby authorized and directed to make application 

and request funds from the McHenry County Community Development Commission for the Sewer 

Facilities in furtherance of the Sewer System Extension contemplated by the IGA between the 

District and the Village.  To the extent any actions have previously been taken consistent with this 

authorization and direction, such actions are hereby ratified.  

SECTION 3. To the extent required in connection with the granting of CDBG funding for the 

Sewer Facilities, the District President and District Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and attest a 

grant agreement between the District and the McHenry County Community Development 

Commission.   

 
Passed this __ day of ________________, 2022. 
 
 AYES: 
 
 NAYS: 
 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
 ABSENT: 

 
  



 

{00030994 2} 3 
 

 
 
Approved this __ day of ________________, 2022. 
 

NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER 
RECLAMATION DISTRICT, an 

Illinois municipal corporation 
 
 

By: ________________________ 
District President  

ATTEST 
 
     

District Clerk 
 
PASSED:    

 
APPROVED:    

 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 
 

	
	
Meeting	Date:	 January	11,	2022	
	
Item:					 Ratify	Approval	of	IEPA	Unsewered	Community	Grant	
	
Staff	Recommendation:	 Motion	 to	 Approve	 Resolution	 22-02	 Ratifying	 the	 Approval	 and	

Acceptance	of	an	IEPA	Unsewered	Community	Grant	for	the	Holiday	Hills	
Project	in	the	amount	of	$3,495,600	

	
Staff	Contact:	 	 	 Mohammed	M.	Haque,	District	Manager	
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________	
	
Background:	
As	we	discussed	in	the	last	month’s	District	Manager’s	report,	the	District	had	to	do	a	quick	approval	of	the	
grant	agreement	last	month	without	the	item	being	specifically	on	the	agenda.		It	is	now	on	the	agenda	and	
this	Resolution	ratifies	last	month’s	motion.	
	
Recommendation:	
Adopt	the	Resolution	Ratifying	the	Approval	and	Acceptance	of	the	Grant.	
	
Votes	Required	to	Pass:				
Simple	Majority,	via	a	roll	call	vote	
	
	

 
AGENDA ITEM # 10C 

 



 

{00030861} 1 
 

NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-02 

 
RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF AN IEPA  

UNSEWERED COMMUNITY GRANT AND ACTIONS RELATING THERETO 
 

WHEREAS, the Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District (the “District”) has 

applied for a grant from the Unsewered Community Grant Fund (the “UCGF”) of the Illinois 

Environmental Protection Agency (the “IEPA”) to help defray the costs of extending sanitary 

sewerage services (the “Extension Project”) to the Village of Holiday Hills (“Holiday Hills”); and 

WHEREAS, the District has entered into an intergovernmental agreement with Holiday 

Hills in connection with the Extension Project (the “IGA”), which IGA is dependent on the District’s 

receipt and acceptance of a UCGF grant; and 

WHEREAS, the District has received notice of a UCGF grant award in the amount of 

$3,495,600.00 (the “UCGF Grant”); and  

WHEREAS, in order to confirm the District’s acceptance of the UCGF Grant, the District 

was required to execute certain documentation required by the IEPA; and 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Trustees (the “Corporate Authorities”) determined that 

it is in the best interests of the District and its residents and the facilities planning area for which 

the District serves as the designated management agency to have the District formally approve 

and accept the UCGF Grant and to execute all documentation required therefor; and 

WHEREAS, in December 2021, the Corporate Authorities did approve a resolution 

approving and accepting the UCGF Grant and authorizing District officials to execute all 

documentation in furtherance of such UCGF Grant (the “December 2021 Resolution”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the December 2021 Resolution, District officials have executed 

certain documentation and taken other actions in furtherance of the District’s approval and 

acceptance of such UCGF Grant; and 



 

{00030861} 2 
 

WHEREAS, in order to cure any procedural deficiencies relating to the Corporate 

Authorities approval of the December 2021 Resolution, the Corporate Authorities have 

determined it is appropriate and in the best interests of the District and its residents to approve 

this Resolution ratifying the actions set forth in the December 2021 Resolution; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CORPORATE AUTHORITIES OF THE 

NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT, LAKE AND McHENRY 

COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, as follows:  

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF PREAMBLES. The Corporate Authorities hereby find 

that the recitals contained in the foregoing preambles are true and correct, and incorporate them 

into this Resolution by this reference.  

SECTION 2. RATIFICATION OF APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF UCGF GRANT 

AND RELATED AUTHORIZATIONS. The Corporate Authorities of the District hereby ratify all 

actions and approvals set forth in the December 2021 Resolution, and all actions taken pursuant 

to the terms of the December 2021 Resolution, including without limitation: (a) the approve and 

accept the UCGF Grant; (b) the authorization of the District Manager, the District President, the 

District Clerk, and their designees to take all actions necessary and appropriate in furtherance of 

securing the UCGF Grant moneys; and (c) all actions heretofore taken pursuant to the December 

2021 Resolution, including without limitation the execution of any grant agreements with the IEPA. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its 

passage and approval in the manner provided by law. 

 

PASSED by the Corporate Authorities on January ___, 2022.  

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 



 

{00030861} 3 
 

APPROVED January ___, 2022. 

___________________________  
District President 

ATTEST: 

 
____________________________ 
District Clerk 
 

  
 



 
 

 
 

	
	
Meeting	Date:	 January	11,	2022	
	
Item:					 Approve	Engineering	Contract	Amendment	#	3	with	Trotter	&	Associates	

for	the	Holiday	Hills	Sanitary	Sewer	Project	
	
Staff	Recommendation:	 Motion	to	Approve	Services	Agreement	with	Trotter	and	Associates,	Inc.	

in	 the	amount	of	$64,150	 for	Bidding	and	Engineering	Services	 for	 the	
Holiday	Hills	Sanitary	Sewer	Project	

	
Staff	Contact:	 	 	 Mohammed	M.	Haque,	District	Manager	
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________	
	
Background:	
	
During	the	course	of	the	design	of	the	Holiday	Hills	project,	we	have	had	some	extra	surveying	as	well	as	an	
evaluation	of	alternative	lift	station	site	locations.		This	has	resulted	in	additional	engineering	time	that	was	
not	originally	included	in	the	scope	of	the	engineering	services.	 	In	addition,	we	have	advertised	and	put	
Holiday	Hills	–	Phase	1	under	bidding	and	are	utilizing	Trotter	&	Associates	 for	 that	 function	as	well	as	
ensuring	that	all	bidding	and	documentation	meets	the	requirements	for	the	Grant	and	IEPA	SRF	Loan.		The	
attached	Addendum	balances	out	all	extra	services	as	well	as	bidding	services	for	the	project.			
	
Recommendation:	
It	is	staff	recommendation	to	Approve	Services	Agreement	with	Trotter	and	Associates,	Inc.	in	the	amount	
of	$64,150	for	Bidding	and	Engineering	Services	for	the	Holiday	Hills	Sanitary	Sewer	Project.	
	
Votes	Required	to	Pass:				
Simple	Majority	via	a	Roll	Call	Vote	

 
AGENDA ITEM # 10D 

 



R	E	S	O	L	U	T	I	O	N	
	
	

BE	 IT	 RESOLVED	 BY	 THE	 BOARD	 OF	 TRUSTEES	 OF	 THE	 NORTHERN	 MORAINE	

WASTEWATER	RECLAMATION	DISTRICT	that	the	Board	of	Trustees	approves	entering	into	

Engineering	Services	Contract	Amendment	#	3	with	Trotter	and	Associates,	Inc.	in	the	amount	

of	$64,150	for	the	Holiday	Hills	Sanitary	Sewer	Project	and	Authorize	the	District	Manager	to	

execute	the	Agreement.	

	

DATED	this						day	of																																,	2022	

				 NORTHERN	MORAINE	WASTEWATER	
RECLAMATION	DISTRICT,	an	

				 Illinois	Municipal	Corporation,	
	
	

				 By:_________________________________																			
																			PRESIDENT	

	
	
SEAL	
	
ATTEST	
	
	
____________________________________	
																						DISTRICT	CLERK	
	

	



CLIENT Initial ______ 
 

TAI Initial _  _____ 
 
 

 
 

1 
 

 
EXHIBIT D 

CONTRACT ADDENDUM 
 

Project Name: Unsewered Community – Village of Holiday Hills Sanitary Sewer Project 

Project No.:     NMW082 

Addendum No. 3 

This is an addendum attached to, made part of and incorporated by reference into the Agreement between 
CLIENT and ENGINEER for modification of scope and compensation for the PROJECT. All other terms 
and conditions of the original Agreement between CLIENT and ENGINEER are unchanged by this 
Contract Addendum and shall remain in full force and effect and shall govern the obligations of both 
CLIENT and ENGINEER, including obligations created by this Contract Addendum. 

TAI is near completion of contract obligations for design engineering services. The current contract 
includes topographic survey, preliminary (60%) and final (95%) engineering plans and specifications, IEPA 
loan application administration and project management services.  

The District has requested a contract addendum to include bidding and negotiating services. Design fees 
beyond the scope of the original contract are also being requested as detailed below. 

The contract modifications are described below: 

Design Engineering Extras – Design fees associated with additional Design Engineering scope items. 
($25,050) 

1. Geotechnical sub-consultant coordination ($1,980) 
2. Alternate Lift Station site evaluation ($10,070) 
3. Easement and property purchase assistance ($1,820) 
4. Soil Boring Staking ($2,840) 
5. CDBG Grant Application ($8,340) 

Final Bidding Documents 

1. Prepare bidding documents for Phase 1 including assembling a specific set of drawings and 
specifications for the Phase 1 scope.  

2. Finalize IDNR Easement and provide lift station property purchase assistance. 

Bidding and Negotiating Phase  

1. Assist the District in advertising for and obtaining bids for the Work. 
2. Issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Documents. 
3. Conduct the pre-bid meeting, attend Bid opening, prepare Bid tabulation sheets, and assist the 

District in evaluating Bids or proposals and in assembling and awarding contract work. 
4. Prepare a Recommendation to Award, Notice of Intent to Award, Contract and Notice to Proceed. 

Review Contractor Certificate of Insurance and bonds. 



CLIENT Initial ______ 
 

TAI Initial _  _____ 
 
 

 
 

2 
 

5. Attend (2) Board Meetings. (1) for the Recommendation to Award and (1) for Award of the 
Contract Work once the IEPA Loan Agreement is issued. 

6. Participate in any negotiations or clarification discussion. 
7. Furnish and supply drawings and project specification copies as required.  Bidding documents to 

be distributed by TAI to potential Bidders.  
8. Coordinate submittal of the bidding documents to IEPA with respect to finalizing the loan 

agreement.  

ADDENDUM NO. 3 COMPENSATION 

Design Engineering Extras $   25,050 
Final Bidding Documents for Phase 1 $   13,700 
Bidding Services $   25,400 
Total Addendum No. 3 $   64,150 

CONTRACT SUMMARY 
 
Original Contract Amount $    57,000 
Items not completed from Original Contract per Add#1 ($    19,600) 
Changes Prior to This Change $  365,600 
Amount of This Change $    64,150 
Revised Contract Amount:  $  467,150 

 

For purposes of expediency, ENGINEER and CLIENT agree that an executed electronic version of this 
Contract Addendum shall suffice.  The original of this Contract Addendum shall be returned to ENGINEER 
after execution. 

CLIENT:  ENGINEER: 

NORTHERN MORAINE  TROTTER AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
WASTEWATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT  

SIGNED:  SIGNED: 

    

  PRESIDENT 1/4/2022 
 TITLE  DATE  TITLE    DATE 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

	
	
Meeting	Date:	 January	11,	20221	
	
Item:					 Approve	Resolution	Adopting	Revised	COVID-19	Safety	Procedures	
	
Staff	Recommendation:	 Approve	a	Resolution	Establishing	COVID	Safety	Precautions	
	
Staff	Contact:	 	 	 Mohammed	M.	Haque,	District	Manager	
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________	
	
Background:	
The	District	adopted	a	COVID-19	Safety	Policy	back	in	April	13,	2021.		That	policy	requires	individuals	that	
test	 positive	 for	 COVID	 to	 quarantine	 for	 10	 days	 from	 the	 onset	 of	 symptoms.	 	 Recently,	 the	 CDC	 has	
changed	it’s	guidance	to	5	days.		The	District	would	like	to	update	our	policies	to	reflect	this	shorter	time	for	
the	 return	 to	 work	 and	 to	 allow	 the	 District	 Manager	 the	 discretion	 needed	 to	 adjust	 to	 this	 ongoing	
situation.		
	
Recommendation:	
It	is	the	recommendation	of	the	District	Manager	to	approve	a	Resolution	establishing	Revised	COVID-19	
safety	precautions.	
	
	
Votes	Required	to	Pass:				
Simple	Majority,	via	a	Roll	Call	Vote	
	
	

 
AGENDA ITEM # 10E 

 



 

 
{00031017 2}  

1 
 

NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-_______ 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING COVID-19 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS 
 

WHEREAS, the Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District (the “District”) is a 

sanitary district operating pursuant to the authority set forth in the Illinois Sanitary District Act of 1917, 

70 ILCS 2405 (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the District provides, inter alia, sanitary sewage collection and treatment 

services for persons within the corporate limits of the District (the “Services”); and 

WHEREAS, the Services are an essential function for the maintenance of the public health, 

safety, and welfare of the persons living, working, or interacting within the District’s service area, as 

well as for the environmental and ecological health of such service area and public waters located 

therein; and 

WHEREAS, to continue to provide its essential Services, it is necessary for the District to 

have and maintain a skilled staff that is available to serve the District and its residents and users; 

and 

WHEREAS, the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic have presented serious health risks to 

individuals while causing significant disruption to commerce and personal activities within the District 

and worldwide; and 

WHEREAS, in the face of the challenges arising from COVID-19, the President and Board of 

Trustees of the District (the “District Board”) have determined that it is essential for the public health, 

safety, and welfare of the District, its residents, and those interacting with persons and businesses 

within the District or having any association with persons or businesses located downstream from 

the receiving waters of the District’s treatment facilities that all steps be taken to ensure the safe, 

effective, efficient, and continued operation of the District and its facilities (the “Operations”) and the 

continued provision of the Services; and 



 

 
{00031017 2}  

2 
 

WHEREAS, to protect the District’s staff and persons interacting with the District’s staff, and 

to better ensure that the District’s staff remains available and accessible for performing the essential 

Operations and providing the Services of the District, the District previously established temporary 

rules for District officers, officials, employees, contractors, service providers, and users pursuant to 

District Resolution No. 21-03 (the “Special COVID Rules”); and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Department of Public Health (“IDPH”) has recently issued guidance 

regarding isolation and quarantine periods for those testing positive for COVID-19 and those who 

have come into close contact with someone with COVID-19 (“IDPH Guidance”); and 

WHEREAS, the District Board desires to update its Special Covid Rules to incorporate the 

IDPH Guidance (the “Updated Special COVID Rules”); and 

WHEREAS, compliance with the Updated Special COVID Rules shall be deemed part of the 

duties of the employees of the District and the obligation of those doing business with the District, a 

condition for the entry upon District property, and a condition of the Services of the District;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

NORTHERN MORAINE WASTEWATER RECLAMATION DISTRICT, LAKE AND McHENRY 

COUNTIES, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE:  Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as if fully set forth. 

SECTION TWO:  Adoption of Updated Special COVID Rules; Supplemental Rules.   

A. Adoption.  The District Board hereby adopts and approves the “Updated Special 

COVID Rules” that are attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof, which Updated Special 

Covid Rules shall replace the previously approved Special Covid Rules. The District Manager is 

hereby directed to post the Updated Special COVID Rules on the District’s website and otherwise 

circulate such Updated Special COVID Rules to all District employees.  

B. Supplemental Rules.  The District Manager is hereby authorized to establish 

additional rules to supplement the Updated Special COVID Rules that are reasonable and not 

inconsistent with the guidelines and directives of the Center for Disease Control and the Illinois 



 

 
{00031017 2}  

3 
 

Department of Public Health (“Supplemental Rules”).  The District Manager shall post all such 

Supplemental Rules on the District’s website and otherwise circulate such Supplemental Rules as 

soon as possible after adoption.  Any such Supplemental Rules shall be deemed incorporated into 

the Updated Special COVID Rules. 

SECTION THREE:  Violations of Updated Special COVID Rules.   

A. Violations by Officers, Officials, and Employees.  The Updated Special COVID Rules 

shall be deemed to be incorporated and made a part of the District’s Employee Manual.  Any officer, 

official, or employee of the District who violates the Updated Special COVID Rules will be deemed 

to have violated the District’s Employee Manual and will be subject to discipline as set forth in the 

Employee Manual. To the extent that the Employee Manual does not apply to an officer or official of 

the District, any violation shall be reported to the District Board, which shall be authorized to discipline 

such officer or official.  

B. Violations by Non-Employees.  Any person other than an officer, official, or employee 

of the District who violates the Updated Special COVID Rules while located upon any property of the 

District shall be deemed a trespasser and subject to civil and criminal penalties therefor as provided 

by law. 

SECTION FOUR: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately following its approval. 

PASSED THIS ____ DAY OF _______________, 2022. 
AYES:  ( )  
NAYS:  ( )  
ABSENT: ( )  
 

APPROVED THIS ____ DAY OF _______________, 2022. 
 

               
       President 
ATTEST: 
     
District Clerk  
  



 

 
{00031017 2}  

4 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Updated Special COVID Rules 
 
 

 The Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District (the “District”), through its Board of 

Trustees, has adopted the following special rules (the “Updated Special COVID Rules”) in order to 

protect employees and others and minimize the risk of transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that 

causes COVID-19. The Updated Special COVID Rules apply to all officers, officials, and employees 

of the District, as well as to any other persons who visit District facilities or properties.  

 General Safety Guidelines 

• To the extent feasible, maintain 6 feet of social distance. When such social distancing cannot 
be maintained, masks must be worn. This requirements shall not apply to any District 
employee after 14 days of such employee being fully vaccinated. 
 

• Wash your hands after using the restroom, before eating, and if you cough/sneeze into your 
hands [follow the 20-second handwashing rule]. Use hand sanitizer when possible. 
 

• Cough/sneeze into your sleeve, preferably into your elbow. If you use a tissue, discard it 
properly and clean/sanitize your hands immediately. 
 

• Avoid touching your face, particularly eyes, nose, and mouth with your hands to prevent from 
getting infected. 
 

• Travel in separate vehicles at all times. This requirements shall not apply to any District 
employee after 14 days of such employee being fully vaccinated. 
 

• If you find yourself coughing/sneezing on a regular basis, avoid close physical contact with 
your coworkers and others and take extra precautionary measures (such as requesting sick 
leave). 
 

• If you have cold symptoms, such as fever/nagging cough/feeling lousy, do not come to 
work.  If symptoms persist, consult your doctor and get tested for COVID.   

  
Masks 

• Masks (i.e., face coverings that are either cloth face coverings or surgical masks) shall be 
worn so as to cover one’s nose and mouth, as follows: 
 

o Upon entering any District building and in all common areas (hallways, bathrooms, 
break room, etc.).  
 

o Whenever meeting with, or in the same room as, another person.  (For example, two 
or more people in the control room, ops. computer area, etc.). 

 
o Whenever non-District personnel (contractors, haulers, consultants, salespeople, 

customers, etc.) are inside any District building.   



 

 
{00031017 2}  

5 
 

 
§ If you see someone without a mask, District personnel should inform them of 

these Updated Special COVID Rules or notify management. 
 

o Masks can be removed by District employees who are working alone in any room that 
can be closed with a door or that is otherwise enclosed or designed to maintain social 
distancing of at least six feet. 
 

• Mask requirements shall not apply to any District employee after 14 days of such employee 
being fully vaccinated. 

 
COVID-19 Positive Cases 
 
Employees who have tested positive for COVID-19 shall notify the District Manager and shall not 
appear for work, except after observing the following protocols: 
 

• Employees who test positive for COVID-19, regardless of vaccination status, should isolate 
for 5 days after onset of symptoms, or 5 days after date of positive test if no symptoms are 
present. 
 

• Employees who have tested positive for COVID-19, regardless of vaccination status, should 
(a) stay masked when around others for 10 days following onset of symptoms, or (b) if no 
symptoms are apparent, stay masked when around others for 10 days following date of 
positive test.  
 

• If the case has no symptoms or their symptoms have resolved after 5 days, the employees 
are released from isolation after 5 days. They should continue to wear a mask around others 
for 5 additional days.  

 
Quarantine Period Following Close Contact With Someone With COVID-19 
 
Employees who have had close contact with someone with COVID-19 shall notify the District 
Manager and shall observe the following protocols: 
 

If the employee:  
Is eligible for boosting and has been boosted  
OR  
completed the primary series of Pfizer or Moderna 
within the last 6 months  
OR  
Completed the primary series of J&J vaccine within 
the last 2 months. 

Wear a mask around others for 10 days.  
 
Test on day 5, if possible.  
 
If the employee develops symptoms, they should 
immediately quarantine until a negative test 
confirms symptoms are not caused by COVID-19. 

 
 

If the employee:  
Completed the primary series of Pfizer or Moderna 
vaccine over 6 months ago and are not boosted  
OR  
completed the primary series of J&J over 2 months 
ago and are not boosted  
OR  
are unvaccinated. 

Stay home for 5 days. After that continue to wear a 
mask around others for 5 additional days. 
  
Test on day 5, if possible. 
 
If the employee develops symptoms, they should 
immediately quarantine until a negative test 
confirms symptoms are not caused by COVID-19.   

 
 



 
 

 
 

	
	
Meeting	Date:	 January	11,	2022	
	
Item:					 NIMEC	Electrical	Agreement	
	
Staff	Recommendation:	 For	Information	Only	
	
Staff	Contact:	 	 	 Mohammed	M.	Haque,	District	Manager	
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________	
	
Background:	
Historically,	at	the	January	board	meeting,	we	authorize	NIMEC	to	put	our	electrical	power	purchase	under	
bid	with	their	consolidated	bidding.		We	did	that	last	year	and	opted	to	enter	into	a	2	year	agreement	with	
AEP	Energy	based	on	their	low	bid.		A	copy	of	their	agreement	is	attached.		No	work	is	needed	this	year,	but	
we	will	have	to	rebid	in	2023.	
	
Recommendation:	
For	Information	Only	
	
	
Votes	Required	to	Pass:				
Not	Applicable	
	
	

 
AGENDA ITEM # 10F 

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB

3/7/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D7F51DB-617D-409B-8544-1A2867BE48BB



 
 

 
 

January 5, 2022 
 
Dear Residents of Holiday Hills and Le Villa Vaupell, 
 
I have encouraging news to share. The Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District (NMWRD) is making 
significant progress toward the goal of developing a public sanitary sewer system to serve the Village of Holiday 
Hills and Le Villa Vaupell following many years of repeated efforts. This past July, the Village of Holiday Hills Board 
of Trustees approved an intergovernmental agreement with NMWRD to pursue this valuable community asset 
and to establish predictable terms upon which Village residents will be able to connect to the new system. 
Engineering and permitting for the new sewer system are underway, and you may have seen surveyors and other 
environmental specialists in the area. 
 
The entire region will benefit from this sewage solution because eliminating most private septic systems will 
greatly improve the area’s water quality. Failing and overloaded septic systems contribute significant amounts of 
organic pollutants to the Fox River, especially when they become submerged during wet weather conditions.  
 
Overall, the project will include over 27,000 lineal feet of sewer, 100 manholes, 4,000 lineal feet of force main and 
one lift station. The estimated cost during early project planning for this work was $6.7 million, however, the 
overall cost of the project has significantly increased since the original planning period. Part of the cost increase 
relates to necessary design changes, soils investigation, dewatering requirements, and expanded restoration -- all 
based on previously unknown field conditions that were first identified during design. The most significant 
contributing factor to the increased project cost, however, is the increase in material and labor expenses that are 
driven by the global supply-chain and other impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. For example, the cost of sewer 
pipe for the project has more than doubled in price. Because of these unanticipated conditions and events, the 
new cost estimate is approaching $12 million.  
 
NMWRD had secured funding for a $7 million investment in the project, with the work originally scheduled for 
completion in 2022. Because of the unexpected cost increases that are beyond the District’s control, additional 
funding will be required to complete the full extent of the sewer system project. Nevertheless, the District will 
honor its original financial commitment and will construct as much of the proposed system as practical in 2022. 
Phase 1 will include installation of the lift station, force main and underground trunk sewer on Sunset Drive and 
Holiday Drive. This work is estimated to be less than $7 million. The work will be publicly bid to obtain 
competitive pricing. The bidding documents will include additional areas to be constructed in Phase 1 if 
contractor pricing is within the available funding amount. Please see the enclosed map of the Phase 1 project area 
and future phases. 
 
The remaining sewers within the Village and Le Villa Vaupell will be constructed in future phases as more funding 
becomes available. NMWRD is actively seeking funding opportunities on local, state and federal levels to complete 
the project for the entire service area. It is the NMWRD’s goal to construct as much sanitary sewer as practical 
over the next several years. 
 
For more information, please visit us at www.nmwrd.org as we undertake this significant endeavor together. 
Please submit all questions to Jillian Kiss, Trotter and Associates, Inc., at (630) 587-0470 or j.kiss@trotter-inc.com. 
 
NORTHERN MORAINE WRD 

 
Mohammed M. Haque 
District Manager 
 



P.O. Box 240
Island Lake, IL 60042

 
 

 
 

December 16, 2021 
 
Dear Residents of Holiday Hills and Le Villa Vaupell, 
 
I have encouraging news to share. The Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District (NMWRD) is making 
significant progress toward the goal of developing a public sanitary sewer system to serve the Village of Holiday 
Hills and Le Villa Vaupell following many years of repeated efforts. This past July, the Village of Holiday Hills Board 
of Trustees approved an intergovernmental agreement with NMWRD to pursue this valuable community asset 
and to establish predictable terms upon which Village residents will be able to connect to the new system. 
Engineering and permitting for the new sewer system are underway, and you may have seen surveyors and other 
environmental specialists in the area. 
 
The entire region will benefit from this sewage solution because eliminating most private septic systems will 
greatly improve the area’s water quality. Failing and overloaded septic systems contribute significant amounts of 
organic pollutants to the Fox River, especially when they become submerged during wet weather conditions.  
 
Overall, the project will include over 27,000 lineal feet of sewer, 100 manholes, 4,000 lineal feet of force main and 
one lift station. The estimated cost during early project planning for this work was $6.7 million, however, the 
overall cost of the project has significantly increased since the original planning period. Part of the cost increase 
relates to necessary design changes, soils investigation, dewatering requirements, and expanded restoration -- all 
based on previously unknown field conditions that were first identified during design. The most significant 
contributing factor to the increased project cost, however, is the increase in material and labor expenses that are 
driven by the global supply-chain and other impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. For example, the cost of sewer 
pipe for the project has more than doubled in price. Because of these unanticipated conditions and events, the 
new cost estimate is approaching $12 million.  
 
NMWRD had secured funding for a $7 million investment in the project, with the work originally scheduled for 
completion in 2022. Because of the unexpected cost increases that are beyond the District’s control, additional 
funding will be required to complete the full extent of the sewer system project. Nevertheless, the District will 
honor its original financial commitment and will construct as much of the proposed system as practical in 2022. 
Phase 1 will include installation of the lift station, force main and underground trunk sewer on Sunset Drive and 
Holiday Drive. This work is estimated to be less than $7 million. The work will be publicly bid to obtain 
competitive pricing. The bidding documents will include additional areas to be constructed in Phase 1 if 
contractor pricing is within the available funding amount. Please see the enclosed map of the Phase 1 project area 
and future phases. 
 
The remaining sewers within the Village and Le Villa Vaupell will be constructed in future phases as more funding 
becomes available. NMWRD is actively seeking funding opportunities on local, state and federal levels to complete 
the project for the entire service area. It is the NMWRD’s goal to construct as much sanitary sewer as practical 
over the next several years. 
 
For more information, please visit us at www.nmwrd.org as we undertake this significant endeavor together. 
Please submit all questions to Jillian Kiss, Trotter and Associates, Inc., at (630) 587-0470 or j.kiss@trotter-inc.com 
 
NORTHERN MORAINE WRD 

 
Mohammed M. Haque 
District Manager 
 



Press Releases

VIEW MORE 

Press Release - Wednesday, December 08, 2021

ALTO PASS — Governor JB Pritzker and Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Director John J.

Kim today announced $16,878,529 in grants have been awarded to five communities across the state

through IEPA's Unsewered Communities Construction Grant Program (UCCGP). Made possible through

the governor's bipartisan Rebuild Illinois capital plan, the project will allow underserved communities to

have a safe and dependable wastewater collection and treatment system. The announcement was

made at the Village of Alto Pass, where a total of $4.4 million in state funding from IEPA and the

Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity was awarded to replace the failing infrastructure

within the community.

"Alto Pass is the first recipient of the EPA's Unsewered Communities Construction Grant in Illinois - but

many more communities will follow. Thanks to Rebuild Illinois, we are making $100 million available to

build wastewater collection and treatment facilities for communities without them," said Governor JB

Pritzker. "We also have provided an additional grant program to help communities plan their future

design so they can build the solution that works best for them - over 30 communities have already

received these planning grants earlier this year."

In the fall of 2020 Illinois EPA announced $20 million in funding available to assist communities with

inadequate or nonexistent wastewater collection and treatment facilities through the Unsewered

Communities Construction Grant Program (UCCGP). Through Governor Pritzker's bipartisan Rebuild

Illinois Capital Plan, Illinois EPA is making $100 million available over the next five years through

construction grants for wastewater collection and/or treatment facilities for such communities.

Additionally, the Unsewered Communities Planning Grant Program (UCPGP) provides $1M annually in

smaller scale grants to help communities develop construction plans. 2021's recipients can be found

here.

Illinois EPA estimates there are more than 200 Illinois communities that have inadequate or nonexistent

wastewater collection and treatment facilities. These communities rely on individual septic tank

systems or patchwork systems that result in illegal surface discharges that have negative

environmental impacts. Affordability of appropriate systems is the greatest obstacle for unsewered

communities. The UCCGP provides an opportunity to receive grant funds which would help finance the

corrective action needed to address issues with wastewater collection and treatment.

"This grant will prevent the potentially unhealthy conditions and likely negative environmental impacts

from the current failing system," said IEPA Director John J. Kim. "This project will allow for the

construction of new, reliable wastewater infrastructure that will benefit residents, businesses, and the

environment."

Alto Pass is a small community in Union County with a population of just over 300 residents. The

Village currently has failing septic tanks for the collection and treatment of sanitary sewer waste. The

Village applied and was approved for an UCCGP that will be used for the construction of a new

wastewater treatment system with chlorination, and a septic tank effluent pump wastewater collection

system consisting of approximately 160 new septic tanks and pumps at each residence and business in

the community. Necessary force main will also be constructed along with the installation of air release

valves, cleanouts, and a back-up generator. The removal and replacement of pavement and other

improvements will also be included as part of the project.  

In addition to EPA funding, Alto Pass is also receiving $500,000 from the Illinois Department of

Commerce and Economic Opportunity and more than $2.2 million from the U.S. Department of

Agriculture Rural Development Loan/Grant Funds to help fund the project. The total project cost is

estimated to be $6.622 million. The Village anticipates starting construction in January 2022 and

completing construction in December 2022.

"When we invest in real, tangible infrastructure, we are doing the work we are elected to do," said

State Representative Paul Jacobs (R-Paloma). "I am thrilled Southern Illinois is receiving the

attention we deserve on this crucial piece of infrastructure for our people. This project will also mean

good paying jobs for the hard-working men and women of Southern Illinois while ensuring basic needs

continue to be met."

Illinois August 2021

Illinois State Museum plans…

Tuesday, January 04

January is Radon Action…

Tuesday, January 04

2021 Hamilton County…

Tuesday, January 04

●

●

●

Pritzker Administration Announces Over
$16.8 Million in Grants for New
Wastewater Infrastructure

https://www.illinois.gov/search-results.html?contentType=news&q=
https://www.illinois.gov/news/press-release.22122.html
https://www.illinois.gov/news/press-release.23318.html
https://www.illinois.gov/news/press-release.23318.html
https://www.illinois.gov/
https://www.illinois.gov/news/2021/august-2021.html
https://www.illinois.gov/content/soi/illinois/en/news/press-release.24346.html
https://www.illinois.gov/content/soi/illinois/en/news/press-release.24348.html
https://www.illinois.gov/content/soi/illinois/en/news/press-release.24349.html


In addition to the UCCGP (construction) and UCPGP (planning) programs, the state is investing in

additional environmental infrastructure through Governor Pritzker's historic Rebuild Illinois capital plan.

Those programs include the Green Infrastructure Grant Opportunities program, which is investing $25

million in capital funds to construct green infrastructure best management practices to prevent,

eliminate, or reduce water quality impairments. Through Rebuild Illinois, IEPA also received an

additional $100 million to fund wastewater and drinking water infrastructure projects through the State

Revolving Fund loan program as well as a $50 million hazardous waste remediation program to ensure

hazardous wastes do not negatively impact the health of Illinois residents or their communities.

Other communities that that are receiving UCCGP Grants include:

For more information about the Unsewered Communities Construction and Planning Grant Programs,

please visit https://www2.illinois.gov/epa/topics/grants-loans/unsewered-

communities/Pages/default.aspx.

City of Freeport in Stephenson County will receive $2,244,529 to provide sewer service to the

Oakhill Subdivision residences that are currently utilizing private septic systems.

Village of Westfield in Clark County will receive $5,000,000 to construct a wastewater treatment

plant with UV disinfection to serve approximately 558 residents of the unsewered community.

City of East Dubuque in Jo Daviess County will receive $2,222,000 to extend the sanitary sewer to

84 residential single-family households in the Indian Hills and Kneable Court residential

subdivisions that are currently on private systems.

Northern Moraine Water Reclamation District/Village of Holiday Hills in McHenry County will

receive $3,495,000 for the Phase 1 portion of the extension of sanitary sewer service from

Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District to the 276 single family residences in the

Village of Holiday Hills and 29 homes in the Le Ville Vaupell Subdivision.

●

●

●

●

https://www2.illinois.gov/epa/topics/grants-loans/unsewered-communities/Pages/default.aspx


Type Date Num Due Date Open Balance

AEP ENERGY
Bill 12/17/2021 3014418075 - Decembe 12/17/2021 119.35
Bill 12/17/2021 3014418020 - Decembe 12/17/2021 335.95
Bill 12/17/2021 3014418031 - Decembe 12/17/2021 106.10
Bill 12/17/2021 3014417917 - Decembe 12/17/2021 137.49
Bill 12/17/2021 3014417995 - Decembe 12/17/2021 122.96
Bill 12/17/2021 3014417962 - Decembe 12/17/2021 102.23
Bill 12/17/2021 3014417984 - Decembe 12/17/2021 104.09
Bill 12/17/2021 3014418053 - Decembe 12/17/2021 38.09
Bill 12/17/2021 3014418064 - Decembe 12/17/2021 221.01
Bill 12/17/2021 3014417951 - Decembe 12/17/2021 266.44
Bill 12/17/2021 3014417973 - Decembe 12/17/2021 114.05
Bill 12/17/2021 3014417849 - Decembe 12/17/2021 8,491.51
Bill 12/20/2021 3014417861 - Decembe 12/20/2021 37.64
Bill 12/21/2021 3014417894 - Decembe 12/21/2021 43.49
Bill 12/21/2021 3014417928 - Decembe 12/21/2021 129.59
Bill 12/21/2021 3014417940 - Decembe 12/21/2021 118.27
Bill 12/21/2021 3014417850 - Decembe 12/21/2021 71.13
Bill 12/21/2021 3014417872 - Decembe 12/21/2021 97.00
Bill 12/21/2021 3014417883 - Decembe 12/21/2021 63.44
Bill 12/21/2021 3014417906 - Decembe 12/21/2021 248.15
Bill 12/21/2021 3014417939 - Decembe 12/21/2021 54.12
Bill 12/21/2021 3014418042 - Decembe 12/21/2021 332.06
Bill 12/23/2021 3014418086 - Decembe 12/23/2021 127.82

Total AEP ENERGY 11,481.98

AFR MANAGEMENT, LLC
Bill 11/18/2021 00007 12/18/2021 1,104.26

Total AFR MANAGEMENT, LLC 1,104.26

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES
Credit 12/21/2021 1CF7-JG3R-H4MP -29.99
Bill 09/26/2021 191D-HDTK-R14L 09/26/2021 28.99
Bill 12/14/2021 14V3-1CC6-XFCM 12/14/2021 8.49
Bill 12/17/2021 1MDF-1D9G-616X 12/17/2021 108.00
Bill 12/28/2021 1WGY-MJPR-VFC4 12/28/2021 35.48
Bill 01/04/2022 1RCL-PKQ3-KLL6 01/04/2022 277.98

Total AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 428.95

AMPERAGE ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, INC.
Bill 11/30/2021 1238028-IN 12/30/2021 295.00

Total AMPERAGE ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, INC. 295.00

AT&T
Bill 12/28/2021 815344832612 12/28/2021 1,471.58

Total AT&T 1,471.58

BITSPEED CONSULTING, INC
Bill 12/19/2021 11089 01/18/2022 4,333.00
Bill 12/31/2021 11105 01/30/2022 508.00

Total BITSPEED CONSULTING, INC 4,841.00

BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF ILLINOIS
Bill 12/20/2021 January Statement 12/20/2021 118.58

Total BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF ILLINOIS 118.58

BP
Bill 01/04/2022 61401356 01/04/2022 296.58

Total BP 296.58

BRUNN, TIMOTHY R
Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 200.00

1:17 PM Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District
Unpaid Bills

As of January 7, 2022

Page 1



Type Date Num Due Date Open Balance

Total BRUNN, TIMOTHY R 200.00

CHEMTRADE CHEMICALS CORPORATION
Bill 12/07/2021 93255015 12/07/2021 5,621.63

Total CHEMTRADE CHEMICALS CORPORATION 5,621.63

COE EQUIPMENT INC.
Bill 12/29/2021 77859 12/29/2021 4,659.19

Total COE EQUIPMENT INC. 4,659.19

COM ED
Bill 12/28/2021 3567414012 02/26/2022 140.72
Bill 12/28/2021 3567415019 02/26/2022 150.08

Total COM ED 290.80

COMCAST CABLE
Bill 12/28/2021 January Charges 12/28/2021 326.09

Total COMCAST CABLE 326.09

DEBORAH MARTIN
Bill 12/23/2021 OCT REIMBURSEMENT 12/23/2021 17.02
Bill 12/23/2021 NOV REIMBURSEMENT 12/23/2021 17.25

Total DEBORAH MARTIN 34.27

ED'S RENTAL & SALES, INC
Bill 12/01/2021 347806-1 12/01/2021 460.58

Total ED'S RENTAL & SALES, INC 460.58

FILIPPINI LAW FIRM, LLP
Bill 12/22/2021 21805 01/21/2022 7,264.18

Total FILIPPINI LAW FIRM, LLP 7,264.18

GACRUX
Bill 01/05/2022 2104 02/04/2022 750.00

Total GACRUX 750.00

ILLINOIS COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT TRUST
Bill 12/23/2021 RCB000000028287 12/23/2021 30,992.00

Total ILLINOIS COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT TRUST 30,992.00

IN-PIPE TECHNOLOGY
Bill 12/31/2021 2043 01/30/2022 2,500.00

Total IN-PIPE TECHNOLOGY 2,500.00

INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER
Bill 11/22/2021 1903701046352 11/22/2021 105.35

Total INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER 105.35

JACOB MANN
Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 200.00

Total JACOB MANN 200.00

MAC STRATEGIES GROUP, INC.
Bill 01/04/2022 3811 01/04/2022 2,000.00

Total MAC STRATEGIES GROUP, INC. 2,000.00

McHENRY COUNTY COLLEGE
Bill 12/20/2021 155 12/20/2021 150.00

Total McHENRY COUNTY COLLEGE 150.00

1:17 PM Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District
Unpaid Bills

As of January 7, 2022

Page 2



Type Date Num Due Date Open Balance

MENARDS - FOX LAKE
Bill 12/15/2021 7964 01/14/2022 68.36
Bill 12/20/2021 8290 01/19/2022 827.96
Bill 12/21/2021 8326 01/20/2022 16.23

Total MENARDS - FOX LAKE 912.55

MICHAELS, KENNETH A
Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 350.00

Total MICHAELS, KENNETH A 350.00

MILLIPORE SIGMA
Bill 12/06/2021 10150938 12/06/2021 215.41

Total MILLIPORE SIGMA 215.41

MOHAMMED HAQUE
Bill 09/10/2021 REIMBURSEMENT 09/10/2021 54.36

Total MOHAMMED HAQUE 54.36

NICOR GAS
Bill 12/11/2021 32250 Darrell Rd 12/11/2021 569.54
Bill 12/13/2021 127 South 12/13/2021 152.56

Total NICOR GAS 722.10

PDC LABORATORIES INC
Bill 12/15/2021 I9493339 01/14/2022 273.35

Total PDC LABORATORIES INC 273.35

RAGLAND, JOHN R
Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 200.00

Total RAGLAND, JOHN R 200.00

RCW TAX
Bill 12/21/2021 889 01/20/2022 670.00

Total RCW TAX 670.00

RYBERG, LYDIA
Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 200.00

Total RYBERG, LYDIA 200.00

SAFETY CULTURE
Bill 01/06/2022 532548 02/05/2022 912.00

Total SAFETY CULTURE 912.00

SHAW MEDIA
Bill 12/31/2021 122110002435 01/30/2022 245.40

Total SHAW MEDIA 245.40

SUBURBAN LABORATORIES INC
Bill 07/15/2021 191248 08/14/2021 660.70
Bill 12/29/2021 198128 01/28/2022 667.00

Total SUBURBAN LABORATORIES INC 1,327.70

THINK INK, INC.
Bill 12/22/2021 20211415 12/22/2021 66.96

Total THINK INK, INC. 66.96

TROTTER AND ASSOCIATES, INC
Bill 11/28/2021 19264 11/28/2021 2,043.25
Bill 11/28/2021 19262 11/28/2021 519.00
Bill 11/28/2021 19268 11/28/2021 46,883.00
Bill 11/28/2021 19259 11/28/2021 810.50

1:17 PM Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District
Unpaid Bills

As of January 7, 2022

Page 3



Type Date Num Due Date Open Balance

Bill 11/28/2021 19263 11/28/2021 86.50
Bill 11/28/2021 19261 11/28/2021 9,005.75
Bill 11/28/2021 19260 11/28/2021 9,271.00
Bill 11/28/2021 19266 11/28/2021 3,147.00
Bill 11/28/2021 19265 11/28/2021 562.25

Total TROTTER AND ASSOCIATES, INC 72,328.25

TRYON GOVERNMENTAL CONSULTING
Bill 12/29/2021 1201946 01/28/2022 3,000.00

Total TRYON GOVERNMENTAL CONSULTING 3,000.00

VERIZON
Bill 12/18/2021 9895344449 01/17/2022 526.79

Total VERIZON 526.79

VIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY
Bill 12/30/2021 122185 01/29/2022 1,128.88

Total VIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY 1,128.88

WAUCONDA CAR WASH
Bill 11/30/2021 101762 11/30/2021 29.98

Total WAUCONDA CAR WASH 29.98

TOTAL 158,755.75

1:17 PM Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District
Unpaid Bills

As of January 7, 2022

Page 4



 1:54 PM
 01/11/22

 Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District

 Bills Payable
 As of January 11, 2022

Type Date Num Due Date Open Balance

AEP ENERGY

Bill 12/17/2021 3014418075 - Decembe 12/17/2021 119.35

Bill 12/17/2021 3014418020 - Decembe 12/17/2021 335.95

Bill 12/17/2021 3014418031 - Decembe 12/17/2021 106.10

Bill 12/17/2021 3014417917 - Decembe 12/17/2021 137.49

Bill 12/17/2021 3014417995 - Decembe 12/17/2021 122.96

Bill 12/17/2021 3014417962 - Decembe 12/17/2021 102.23

Bill 12/17/2021 3014417984 - Decembe 12/17/2021 104.09

Bill 12/17/2021 3014418053 - Decembe 12/17/2021 38.09

Bill 12/17/2021 3014418064 - Decembe 12/17/2021 221.01

Bill 12/17/2021 3014417951 - Decembe 12/17/2021 266.44

Bill 12/17/2021 3014417973 - Decembe 12/17/2021 114.05

Bill 12/17/2021 3014417849 - Decembe 12/17/2021 8,491.51

Bill 12/20/2021 3014417861 - Decembe 12/20/2021 37.64

Bill 12/21/2021 3014417894 - Decembe 12/21/2021 43.49

Bill 12/21/2021 3014417928 - Decembe 12/21/2021 129.59

Bill 12/21/2021 3014417940 - Decembe 12/21/2021 118.27

Bill 12/21/2021 3014417850 - Decembe 12/21/2021 71.13

Bill 12/21/2021 3014417872 - Decembe 12/21/2021 97.00

Bill 12/21/2021 3014417883 - Decembe 12/21/2021 63.44

Bill 12/21/2021 3014417906 - Decembe 12/21/2021 248.15

Bill 12/21/2021 3014417939 - Decembe 12/21/2021 54.12

Bill 12/21/2021 3014418042 - Decembe 12/21/2021 332.06

Bill 12/23/2021 3014418086 - Decembe 12/23/2021 127.82

Total AEP ENERGY 11,481.98

AFR MANAGEMENT, LLC

Bill 11/18/2021 00007 12/18/2021 1,104.26

Total AFR MANAGEMENT, LLC 1,104.26

ALARM DETECTION SYSTEMS, INC

Bill 12/21/2021 SI-563297 12/21/2021 360.25

Total ALARM DETECTION SYSTEMS, INC 360.25

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

Credit 12/21/2021 1CF7-JG3R-H4MP -29.99

Bill 09/26/2021 191D-HDTK-R14L 09/26/2021 28.99

Bill 12/14/2021 14V3-1CC6-XFCM 12/14/2021 8.49

Bill 12/17/2021 1MDF-1D9G-616X 12/17/2021 108.00

Bill 12/28/2021 1WGY-MJPR-VFC4 12/28/2021 35.48

Bill 01/04/2022 1RCL-PKQ3-KLL6 01/04/2022 277.98

Bill 01/08/2022 1FYJ-3HPQ-N4N1 01/08/2022 4.99

Bill 01/08/2022 17XC-QV37-KW1C 01/08/2022 12.99

Bill 01/10/2022 193Q-373D-LLJT 01/10/2022 61.97

Bill 01/11/2022 1GLL-TWYW-W34N 01/11/2022 135.05

Total AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 643.95

AMPERAGE ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, INC.

Bill 11/30/2021 1238028-IN 12/30/2021 295.00

Total AMPERAGE ELECTRICAL SUPPLY, INC. 295.00

AT&T

Bill 12/28/2021 815344832612 12/28/2021 1,471.58

Total AT&T 1,471.58

BARTNICK INC.

Bill 12/01/2021 1496 12/31/2021 10,340.00

Total BARTNICK INC. 10,340.00

BITSPEED CONSULTING, INC

Bill 12/19/2021 11089 01/18/2022 4,333.00

Bill 12/31/2021 11105 01/30/2022 508.00

Total BITSPEED CONSULTING, INC 4,841.00

BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF ILLINOIS

Bill 12/20/2021 January Statement 12/20/2021 118.58

 Page 1 of 4



 1:54 PM
 01/11/22

 Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District

 Bills Payable
 As of January 11, 2022

Type Date Num Due Date Open Balance

Total BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF ILLINOIS 118.58

BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF ILLINOIS

Bill 12/17/2021 January Statement 01/01/2022 16,001.16

Total BLUECROSS BLUESHIELD OF ILLINOIS 16,001.16

BP

Bill 01/04/2022 61401356 01/04/2022 296.58

Total BP 296.58

BRUNN, TIMOTHY R

Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 200.00

Total BRUNN, TIMOTHY R 200.00

CHEMTRADE CHEMICALS CORPORATION

Bill 12/07/2021 93255015 12/07/2021 5,621.63

Total CHEMTRADE CHEMICALS CORPORATION 5,621.63

COE EQUIPMENT INC.

Bill 12/29/2021 77859 12/29/2021 4,659.19

Total COE EQUIPMENT INC. 4,659.19

COM ED

Bill 12/28/2021 3567414012 02/26/2022 140.72

Bill 12/28/2021 3567415019 02/26/2022 150.08

Total COM ED 290.80

COMCAST CABLE

Bill 12/28/2021 January Charges 12/28/2021 326.09

Total COMCAST CABLE 326.09

DEBORAH MARTIN

Bill 12/23/2021 OCT REIMBURSEMENT 12/23/2021 17.02

Bill 12/23/2021 NOV REIMBURSEMENT 12/23/2021 17.25

Total DEBORAH MARTIN 34.27

DELTA DENTAL

Bill  January Premium 12/28/2021 639.31

Total DELTA DENTAL 639.31

DON'S WELDING & FABRICATING

Bill 12/28/2021 33424 01/28/2022 494.17

Total DON'S WELDING & FABRICATING 494.17

ED'S RENTAL & SALES, INC

Bill 12/01/2021 347806-1 12/01/2021 460.58

Total ED'S RENTAL & SALES, INC 460.58

FILIPPINI LAW FIRM, LLP

Bill 12/22/2021 21805 01/21/2022 7,264.18

Total FILIPPINI LAW FIRM, LLP 7,264.18

FIRST BANKCARD

Bill 01/11/2022 DEC STMT 02/10/2022 3,189.90

Total FIRST BANKCARD 3,189.90

GACRUX

Bill 01/05/2022 2104 02/04/2022 750.00

Total GACRUX 750.00

HYDROTEX

Bill 01/07/2022 469157 02/06/2022 304.52

Total HYDROTEX 304.52

ILLINOIS COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT TRUST

Bill 12/23/2021 RCB000000028287 12/23/2021 30,992.00

Total ILLINOIS COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT TRUST 30,992.00

IN-PIPE TECHNOLOGY

Bill 12/31/2021 2043 01/30/2022 2,500.00

Total IN-PIPE TECHNOLOGY 2,500.00

INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER

Bill 11/22/2021 1903701046352 11/22/2021 105.35

Total INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER 105.35

ISOLVED BENEFIT SERVICES

 Page 2 of 4



 1:54 PM
 01/11/22

 Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District

 Bills Payable
 As of January 11, 2022

Type Date Num Due Date Open Balance

Bill 01/09/2022 I116902853 01/09/2022 78.75

Total ISOLVED BENEFIT SERVICES 78.75

JACOB MANN

Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 200.00

Total JACOB MANN 200.00

JOSEPH D FOREMAN & CO

Bill 12/30/2021 330443 01/29/2022 100.00

Total JOSEPH D FOREMAN & CO 100.00

MAC STRATEGIES GROUP, INC.

Bill 01/04/2022 3811 01/04/2022 2,000.00

Total MAC STRATEGIES GROUP, INC. 2,000.00

MCHENRY CNTY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Bill 01/11/2022 STMT 01/05/2022 01/11/2022 500.00

Total MCHENRY CNTY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 500.00

McHENRY COUNTY COLLEGE

Bill 12/20/2021 155 12/20/2021 150.00

Total McHENRY COUNTY COLLEGE 150.00

MENARDS - FOX LAKE

Bill 12/15/2021 7964 01/14/2022 68.36

Bill 12/20/2021 8290 01/19/2022 827.96

Bill 12/21/2021 8326 01/20/2022 16.23

Total MENARDS - FOX LAKE 912.55

MICHAELS, KENNETH A

Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 350.00

Total MICHAELS, KENNETH A 350.00

MILLIPORE SIGMA

Bill 12/06/2021 10150938 12/06/2021 215.41

Total MILLIPORE SIGMA 215.41

MOHAMMED HAQUE

Bill 09/10/2021 REIMBURSEMENT 09/10/2021 54.36

Total MOHAMMED HAQUE 54.36

NEWCASTLE ELECTRIC INC

Bill 08/19/2019 00020353 08/19/2019 1,720.00

Bill 09/20/2019 2346 09/20/2019 2,530.00

Bill 03/03/2020 2368 03/03/2020 1,915.89

Bill 03/03/2020 2369 03/03/2020 1,933.86

Total NEWCASTLE ELECTRIC INC 8,099.75

NICOR GAS

Bill 12/11/2021 32250 Darrell Rd 12/11/2021 569.54

Bill 12/13/2021 127 South 12/13/2021 152.56

Total NICOR GAS 722.10

PDC LABORATORIES INC

Bill 12/15/2021 I9493339 01/14/2022 273.35

Total PDC LABORATORIES INC 273.35

RAGLAND, JOHN R

Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 200.00

Total RAGLAND, JOHN R 200.00

RCW TAX

Bill 12/21/2021 889 01/20/2022 670.00

Total RCW TAX 670.00

READY FRESH BY NESTLE

Bill 12/15/2021 01L0127320745 12/30/2021 26.00

Total READY FRESH BY NESTLE 26.00

RYBERG, LYDIA

Bill 01/06/2022  REG Mtg 01.11.2022 01/06/2022 200.00

Total RYBERG, LYDIA 200.00

SAFETY CULTURE

Bill 01/06/2022 532548 02/05/2022 912.00

 Page 3 of 4



 1:54 PM
 01/11/22

 Northern Moraine Wastewater Reclamation District

 Bills Payable
 As of January 11, 2022

Type Date Num Due Date Open Balance

Total SAFETY CULTURE 912.00

SHAW MEDIA

Bill 12/31/2021 122110002435 01/30/2022 245.40

Total SHAW MEDIA 245.40

SUBURBAN LABORATORIES INC

Bill 07/15/2021 191248 08/14/2021 660.70

Bill 12/29/2021 198128 01/28/2022 667.00

Total SUBURBAN LABORATORIES INC 1,327.70

THINK INK, INC.

Bill 12/22/2021 20211415 12/22/2021 66.96

Total THINK INK, INC. 66.96

THIRD MILLENNIUM ASSOCIATES INC

Bill 12/31/2021 27148 12/31/2021 562.77

Total THIRD MILLENNIUM ASSOCIATES INC 562.77

TROTTER AND ASSOCIATES, INC

Bill 11/28/2021 19264 11/28/2021 2,043.25

Bill 11/28/2021 19262 11/28/2021 519.00

Bill 11/28/2021 19268 11/28/2021 46,883.00

Bill 11/28/2021 19259 11/28/2021 810.50

Bill 11/28/2021 19263 11/28/2021 86.50

Bill 11/28/2021 19266 11/28/2021 3,147.00

Bill 11/28/2021 19265 11/28/2021 562.25

Total TROTTER AND ASSOCIATES, INC 54,051.50

TRYON GOVERNMENTAL CONSULTING

Bill 12/29/2021 1201946 01/28/2022 3,000.00

Total TRYON GOVERNMENTAL CONSULTING 3,000.00

USA BLUEBOOK

Bill 01/10/2022 840674 02/09/2022 239.82

Bill 01/10/2022 840741 02/09/2022 660.29

Total USA BLUEBOOK 900.11

VERIZON

Bill 12/18/2021 9895344449 01/17/2022 526.79

Total VERIZON 526.79

VIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY

Bill 12/30/2021 122185 01/29/2022 1,128.88

Total VIKING CHEMICAL COMPANY 1,128.88

WAUCONDA CAR WASH

Bill 11/30/2021 101762 11/30/2021 29.98

Total WAUCONDA CAR WASH 29.98

TOTAL 182,290.69

Kenneth A. Michaels, Jr., President Date

Deborah Martin, District Clerk Date

 Page 4 of 4



 
 

 
 

January 11, 2022 
 
Board of Trustees 
Northern Moraine WRD 
113 Timber Trail 
Island Lake, IL 60042 
 
Re: 2021 Calendar Year Accomplishments 
 
Greetings Trustees, 
 
 As the 2021 calendar year ends and we look forward to 2022, we’d like to take a moment to 
reflect on some of the many accomplishments and challenges of the past year with respect to 
grants/funding/revenue, projects, and personnel.  
 
 First and foremost, it is noteworthy to mention that 2021 presented a few challenges, mostly 
due to the lingering effects of the pandemic. The transition back to in-person work for both employees 
and contractors in the first quarter of the year paired with supply chain issues in the latter half of the 
year were the District’s primary challenges. Nonetheless, not only did we ensure that wastewater 
continued to be treated to permit required levels, District staff went above and beyond for meeting 
several District goals.  
 
 As we write this letter to you, we found it challenging to provide a vivid perspective on how 
impressive Northern Moraine WRD’s accomplishments were in 2021, especially when compared to 
any other Illinois Sanitary District of comparable size with respect to number of staff. Our employees 
remained motivated through 2021 and we hope to summarize that sentiment by providing the Board 
of Trustees with the below list of 2021 calendar year accomplishments that the District was able to 
achieve under the leadership of our District Manager, Mohammed Haque.  
 
The accomplishments are provided in three (3) sections; 1. Grants/Funding/Revenue 
Accomplishments, 2. Project Accomplishments, and 3. Personnel Accomplishments. 
  

GRANTS/FUNDING/
REVENUE ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

Funding – Grants 

• Received $30,079 through local CURE grant for COVID related expenditures. 
• Illinois DCEO approved $200,000 grant for Control Building Electrical Upgrades. 
• Illinois DCEO approved $400,000 grant for Lakemoor Lift Station Upgrades. 
• Illinois EPA approved $3,495,600 Unsewered Community Construction Grant for 

Holiday Hills / Le Villa Vaupell Sanitary Sewer Extension. 

Funding – SRF Loans 

Four (4) future District projects are listed on the State Revolving Fund priority listing: 
• Darrell Road Interceptor: $4,000,000 Loan Amount. 
• Holliday Hills /Le Villa Vaupell Sewer Extension: $7,000,000 Loan Amount. 
• Darrel Road Phase 1A – Headworks: $2,000,000 Loan Amount. 
• WWTP Maintenance Garage: $568,500 Loan Amount. 

Additional Revenue • $142,448 Darrell Road Special Connection revenue collected in 2021. 
• $57,089 Hauled Waste revenue collected in 2021. 

Island Lake Shut-Off 
Notices 

The District assumed responsibility for posting of shut-off notices at residences in 
Island Lake in September 2021. Since then, the District has experienced surprising 
savings in the fees that were charged for this service with minimal time invested. 



 
 

 
 

DISTRICT PROJECTS ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
Disinfection Chemical Pump 
Skids 

District staff constructed two (2) chemical feed skids for delivering disinfection 
chemicals to the Chlorine Contact Basins in January 2021. 

Digester Drain Valve 
Replacement 

Replaced critical infrastructure item dating back to 1978. The original digester 
valve was replaced in February 2021. 

Oxidation Ditch Aerator Motor 
Replacements 

Replaced critical infrastructure items dating back to 1998. Two of the four (4) 
original Oxidation Ditch Aerator Motors were replaced in May 2021. Replacement 
of the two (2) remaining original motors anticipated in early 2022. 

SCADA Ongoing SCADA system development throughout 2021. Start-up of remote 
monitoring for dewatering of sludge via centrifuge in February 2021.  

Blower Motor Replacement 
Replaced critical infrastructure item dating back to 2013. Major failure of motor 
in primary blower occurred in April 2021 with full replacement completed in 
May 2021.  

Sludge Conveyance 
Installation and start-up of new sludge conveyance process in May 2021. 
Innovative implementation of non-conventional equipment at a fraction of 
conventional costs, led to increase in process efficiency 

LED Lighting Upgrades Control 
Building 

LED lighting conversion in Control Building Laboratory and MCC Hallway 
completed in July 2021. 

Cartegraph Asset Management 
Software – Phase II 

Cartegraph – Phase II Implementation started June 2021. Full implementation of 
software anticipated April 2022. 

RAS Meter Vault & Flowmeter Installation and start-up of new RAS Meter Vault & RAS Meter in May 2021. 

RAS Control Panel 
Replacement 

Replaced critical infrastructure item with most recent upgrades dating back to 
2016. Complete demolition of two (2) control panels and installation of new 
single RAS Control Panel completed in October 2021. 

Custom Televising Vehicle 
Developed and commissioned the upfitting of a televising vehicle catered to the 
particular needs of Northern Moraine WRD, at a significantly lower cost when 
compared to purchasing a vehicle of this type from a dealer.   

Cleaning/Televising Efforts 
Following completion of Televising Van Buildout in September 2021, District 
Operators began performing cleaning and televising efforts per Northern 
Moraine WRD Cleaning & Televising Plan in October 2021. 

Control Building Electrical 
Upgrades 

Public Bid advertised in July 2021. Bid Opening held in September 2021. 
Construction commencement anticipated February 2022. Completion 
anticipated June 2022. 

WWTP Access Improvements Public Bid advertised in October 2021. Bid Opening held in November 2021. All 
subgrade work completed December 2021. Completion anticipated April 2022.  

Holiday Hills / Le Villa Vaupell 
Sanitary Sewer Extension – 
Phase I 

Full design completed December 2021. Public Bid advertised in December 2021. 
Bid Opening scheduled for February 2022. Construction commencement 
anticipated May 2022. 

Darrell Road Phase 1 – 
Headworks 

Kickoff Meeting held in November 2021. Nearing full design with bid 
advertisement date, bid opening date, and projected construction timeline all 
pending grant funding and loan agreement issuance. 

Lakemoor Lift Station 
Upgrades 

Full design completed in 2020 with bid advertisement date, bid opening date, 
and projected construction timeline all pending grant funding. 

 
DEVELOPER PROJECTS ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

Woodman’s Car Wash 
Expansion 

Successful permitting, engineering review, escrow account funding, sanitary 
sewer installation, and site observation of the Woodman’s Car Wash Expansion 
through 2021. 

Buona Beef Development 
Successful permitting, engineering review, escrow account funding, sanitary 
sewer installation, and site observation of the Buona Beef Development through 
2021. 

Lakemoor Commons Outlot 5 
Development 

Successful permitting, engineering review, escrow account funding, sanitary 
sewer installation, and site observation of the Lakemoor Commons Lot 5 
Development through 2021.  



 
 

 
 

 
PERSONNEL ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

NASSCO Certification 
All operations staff, along with District Superintendent and District Staff Engineer 
received NASCO certification in MACP, PACP, and LACP inspection, as it relates to sewer 
cleaning and televising, through various months of 2021.  

Haque – 2020 CSWEA 
Bedell Award 

District Manager, Mohammed Haque, was awarded the prestigious CSWEA Bedell 
Award in April 2021. Due to cancellation of 2020 CSWEA Annual Meeting, Mr. Haque’s 
award ceremony was delayed until 2021. 

Markko – 2021 CSWEA 
Operations Award 

District Superintendent, Luke Markko, was awarded the prestigious CSWEA Operations 
Award in April 2021. 

Markko – Operations 
Challenge at WEFTEC 

District Superintendent, Luke Markko, was a part of the CSWEA Operations Challenge 
Team that placed 2nd at the Operations Challenge held at WEFTEC in October 2021. 

Lapastora – Duke 
University WILD Fellow 

District Staff Engineer, Joe Lapastora, was awarded a scholarship to participate as 
Fellow in Duke University’s Water Innovation Leadership Development Program in 
November 2021. 

Hendrickson – IEPA 
Class 2 Certification 

District Operator, Tim Hendrickson, passed the IEPA Class 2 Exam in August 2021 and 
received full certification in September 2021. 

Successful 
Internship(s) District successfully hosted two (2) Engineering Internships for Summer of 2021. 

 
Finally, we would like to provide an outlook for 2022 as we are anticipating a wave of funding to 
become available with the recent unveiling of the Federal Infrastructure Package. Thanks to the 
careful consideration and planning demonstrated by our District Manager, Mohammed Haque, over 
the last few years, the District already has a handful of projects that are at a point where the District 
can initiate the grant application process with little to no further preparation needed. A majority of 
the 2022 projects center around energy efficiency and infrastructure upgrades and we are hopeful 
that the District can build upon the grant success that we saw in 2021. 
 
We appreciate your time in reading this letter and we would like to take the opportunity to thank the 
Board for all of your continued support.  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Joe Lapastora, Staff Engineer and 
Luke Markko, Superintendent 
 
 


	NMWRD Board Packet for WEB Jan 2022
	20220111 AI 00 Agenda with ZOOM
	20220111 AI 03A Meeting Minutes Dec 2021
	20220111 AI 04 Treasurer Report
	Balance Sheet
	P&L vs. Budget - Accrual

	20220111 AI 06 Escrow Tracking Spreadsheet 20220106
	20220111 AI 06 Permit Tracking Darrel Rd
	20220111 AI 06 Project Grant Tracking
	20220111 AI 06 Septage Receiving Tracking
	20220111 AI 06 Service Connection Permit Tracking
	20220111 AI 06A Operations Report
	20220111 AI 06B Engineering Report
	20220111 AI 06C Delinquent Accounts
	20220111 AI 10A Tax Abatement
	20220111 AI 10B CDBG Funding
	20220111 AI 10C Unsewered Community Grant Funding
	20220111 AI 10D Holiday Hills Addendum 3
	20220111 AI 10E COVID Safety
	20220111 AI 10F Electrical Agreement
	20220111 AI 111A Resident Letter Jan 2022
	20220111 AI 111B Unsewered Grant Press Release
	20220112 AI 12 Unpaid Bills

	Bills Payable
	_Year End Accomplishments 2021 - Trustee Letter 20220111[3]



